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NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

AMENDED AGENDA 
Held at 344 2nd Avenue West in Prince Rupert, B.C. 

Friday, March 23, 2018 at 7:00 PM 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA (additions/deletions) 
 
3. BOARD MINUTES & BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 

3.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the North Coast Regional District Board 
 held February 23, 2018 
 
3.2 Minutes of the Regular (R2 Budget) Meeting of the North Coast Regional 
 District Board held February 24, 2018 
 
3.3 Minutes of the Regular (R3 Budget) Meeting of the North Coast Regional 
 District Board held March 8, 2018 

Pg 1-7 
 
 

Pg 8-12 
 
 

Pg 13-19 

  
4. STANDING COMMITTEE/COMMISSION MINUTES – BUSINESS ARISING 
 

4.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Electoral Area Advisory Committee 
 held November 24, 2017 
 
4.2 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of Moresby Island Management Standing 
 Committee held January 29th, 2018 

Pg 20-21 
 
 

Pg 22-24 
 

 
5. DELEGATIONS 
 

 None. --- 

 
6. FINANCE 
 

6.1 J. Musgrave, Administrative Assistant – Cheques Payable over $5,000 for 
 February, 2018 

Pg 25 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

7.1 Honourable Minister Trevena, Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
 – BC Ferries North and Mid-Coast  
 
7.2 Honourable Nathan Cullen, MP, Skeena-Bulkley Valley – Passenger 
 Transportation Board Decision 
 
Add: 
7.3 Andy Shadrack – Passenger Transportation Board Decision Appeal 
 

Pg 26-27 
 
 

Pg 28 
 
 
 

Pg 29-30a 
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7.4 North Central Local Government Association – NCLGA February Board 
 Report 
 
7.5 TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association – Advocacy Update 
 
7.6 Northern Development Initiative Trust – 2018 Grant Writing Support 
 Funding 
 
7.7 Northern Development Initiative Trust – 2018 Economic Development 
 Capacity Building Funding 
 
7.8 TransCanada Corporation – Notification Letter: PRGTP Permit Extension 
 Application  
 
7.9 Firewise Consulting – Road Rescue Services 
 
7.10 Union of B.C. Municipalities – 2018 UBCM Membership Dues 
 
7.11 Union of B.C. Municipalities – Update on the Working Group on Responsible 
 Conduct 
 
7.12 Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities – AVICC Special 
 Resolutions and Financial Statements 
 
Add: 
7.13 C. Murdaugh – Graham Island Rezoning 
 
Add: 
7.14 Honourable Minister Robinson, Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing – 
 Northwest BC Resource Benefits Alliance 

 
Pg 31-34 

 
 

Pg 35-36 
 

Pg 37 
 
 

Pg 38 
 
 

Pg 39-46 
 
 

Pg 47-48 
 

Pg 49-50 
 

Pg 51-54 
 
 

Pg 55-87 
 
 
 

Pg 87a 
 
 

Pg 87b-c 

 
8. REPORTS / RESOLUTIONS  
 

8.1 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer Association Service 
 Provider Agreement (MIABC) 
 
8.2 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association 
 Resolution Submission  
 
8.3 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – April 20-21st, 2018 Travel to Port Clements 
 
8.4 D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer – Results of the 2017 Intake for the 
 Federal Gas Tax Fund – Strategic Priorities Fund 

Pg 88-92 
 
 

Pg 93-94 
 
 

Pg 95-96 
 

Pg 97-100 

 
9. BYLAWS 
 

9.1 Bylaw No. 622, 2018 – Being a Bylaw to Adopt the NCRD Five Year Financial 
 Plan 2018-2022 
 Prior to being given first, second, third readings and adoption. 

Pg 101-128 
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10. LAND REFERRALS / PLANNING (Voting restricted to Electoral Area Directors) 
 

10.1 M. Williams, Planning Consultant – Land Referral: Haida Tourism Limited 
 Partnership General Commercial Tenure at Peel Inlet, Moresby Island 
 
10.2 M. Williams, Planning Consultant – Land Referral: Old Massett Village 
 Council Licence Tenure on Graham Island 

Pg 129-150 
 
 

Pg 151-160 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

11.1 Directors’ Reports 
 
11.2 Sandspit to Skidegate Submarine Cables Replacement Project 
 
Add: 
11.3 Gaayhldaa Xaadee – Haida Land Protectors Demand Immediate Halt to 
 Illegal Logging Operations at Collison Point 

Verbal 
 

Pg 161-199 
 
 

Pg 200-201 

 
12. OLD BUSINESS 
 

 None.  --- 

 
13. PUBLIC INPUT 
 
14. IN-CAMERA 
  

That the public be excluded from the meeting according to section 90(2)(a) of the 
Community Charter “the consideration of information received and held in 
confidence relating to negotiations between the municipality and a provincial 
government of the federal government or both.” 

--- 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
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NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
  
 
 

MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Coast Regional District 
(NCRD) held at 344 2nd Avenue West in Prince Rupert, B.C. on Friday, February 23, 
2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT         PRIOR TO ADOPTION

           
Chair B. Pages, Village of Masset       
 
Directors L. Brain, City of Prince Rupert (via teleconference) 
 B. Cunningham, Alternate, City of Prince Rupert 
  D. Franzen, District of Port Edward  
 G. Martin Village of Queen Charlotte  
 U. Thomas, Village of Port Clements 
  D. Nobels, Electoral Area A  
 K. Bergman, Electoral Area C 
 M. Racz, Electoral Area D (via teleconference) 
 C. Wagner, Alternate, Electoral Area E (via teleconference) 

   
Regrets  N. Kinney, City of Prince Rupert  
 B. Beldessi, Electoral Area E 
 
Staff D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer  
 D. Fish, Corporate Officer  
 S. Gill, Treasurer 
       
Public 0 
Media 0 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 7:02 p.m. 
 
2. AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the February 23, 2018 
North Coast Regional District Regular amended agenda be further amended and adopted to 
include the following: 
 
11.3 Card for Director Beldessi 
 
074-2018          CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES & BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 
            3.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the North Coast Regional District Board held 

January 26, 2018 
 
 MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Alternate Director Cunningham, that the 

minutes of Regular meeting of the North Coast Regional District Board held January 
26, 2018 be adopted as presented. 

 
075-2018         CARRIED 

    

1

ITEM 3.1
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           3.2 Minutes of the Regular (Round 1 Budget) Meeting of the North Coast Regional District 
Board held January 27, 2018 

 
 MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the minutes of 

Regular meeting of the North Coast Regional District Board held January 27, 2018 be 
adopted as presented. 

 
076-2018         CARRIED 

 
4.  STANDING COMMITTEE/COMMISSION MINUTES – BUSINESS ARISING 
  
            4.1 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Regional Recycling Advisory Committee held 

October 18, 2017 
 
 MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the minutes of 

Regular meeting of the Regional Recycling Advisory Committee held October 18, 2017 
be received as presented. 

 
077-2018         CARRIED 

 
4.2 Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Moresby Island Management Standing 

Committee held December 5, 2017 
 
 MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the minutes of 

Regular meeting of the Moresby Island Management Standing Committee held 
December 5, 2017 be received as presented. 

 
078-2018         CARRIED 

 
5. DELEGATIONS 
   

None. 
 

6. FINANCE  
 

6.1 J. Musgrave, Administrative Assistant – Cheques Payable over $5,000 for January, 
2018 
 
MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the staff report on 
Cheques Payable over $5,000 issued by the North Coast Regional District for January, 
2018 be received and filed. 

 
079-2018         CARRIED 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

7.1 BC Emergency Health Services – Community Paramedicine Initiative –  Northern 
Health 

 
 MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the correspondence 

from BC Emergency Health Services with respect to the community paramedicine 
initiative be received. 

 
080-2018         CARRIED 

 
  

222
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7.2 Honourable Minister Trevena, Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure  – 
2017 UBCM Follow Up 

 
 MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the correspondence 

from Honourable Minister Trevena, Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure, 
with respect to 2017 UBCM annual convention follow-up be received. 

 
 081-2018         CARRIED 

 
MOVED by Alternate Director Cunningham, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the 
North Coast Regional District Board send correspondence to Minister Trevena 
reiterating the Board’s wishes to reestablish pre-2014 BC Ferries service levels and to 
ask for an update on any provincial progress made on said initiative; 
 
AND THAT Minister Trevena be invited to meet with the Board of the North Coast 
Regional District at a Regular meeting or the annual general meeting for the 
Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities.  
 
082-2018         CARRIED 
 

7.3 Government of Canada – Oceans Protection Plan 
 
 MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the correspondence 

the Government of Canada with respect to the Oceans Protection Plan be received. 
 

083-2018         CARRIED 
 
Director Nobels indicated that he would be attending the Oceans Protection Plan session in Prince 
Rupert, B.C. on March 8-9, 2018 as representative to the North Coast Regional District.  
 

7.4 TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association – Call for Resolutions 2018 AGM 
 
 MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director  Nobels, that the 

correspondence from the TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association with respect 
to its call for resolutions 2018 annual general meeting be received; 

 
 AND THAT staff prepare resolutions to be submitted to the TransCanada Yellowhead 

Highway Association for consideration. 
 

084-2018         CARRIED 
 
The Board directed staff to prepare a resolution to be circulated to the Board of Directors 
electronically. 
  

7.5 Nexen Energy ULC – Aurora LNG – Demobilizaition Plan and Work Commencement 
  Notification 

 
 MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the correspondence 

from Nexen Energy ULC with respect to its demobilization plan and notification of 
work commencement be received. 

 
085-2018         CARRIED 

 
  

333
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7.6 Metro Vancouver Board – GVS & DD Commercial Waste Hauler Licensing Bylaw No. 
307, 2017 

 
 MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the correspondence 

from the Metro Vancouver Board with respect to Bylaw No. 307, 2017 be received. 
 

086-2018         CARRIED 
 

7.7 Northern Development Initiative Trust – 2018 Business Façade  Improvement 
Program 
 
MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the correspondence 
from Northern Development Initiative Trust with respect to the 2018 business façade 
improvement program be received. 

 
087-2018         CARRIED 
 

7.8 O’Brien & Fuerst Logging Ltd. – Environmental Protection Notice: Burn Permit 
Application No. 343870 
 
MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Alternate Director Cunningham, that the 
correspondence from O’Brien & Fuerst Logging Ltd. with respect to its burn permit 
application No. 343870 be received. 

 
088-2018         CARRIED 
 

8. REPORTS – RESOLUTIONS 
 

8.1 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – 2018 Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel Scheduling 
 
 MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the report from staff 

entitled “2018 Parcel Tax Roll Review Panel Scheduling” be received; 
 
 AND THAT the Board appoint the following three members of the Board as the Parcel 

Tax Roll Review Panel to meet and review the Sandspit Water Tax Roll: 
 

 Director Nobels 
 Director Racz 
 Director Martin; 

 
 AND THAT March 23rd, 2018 at 6:45 p.m. be scheduled as the sitting of the Review 

Panel; 
 
 AND THAT the Board designate Director Racz as Chair of the Review Panel; 
 
 AND FURTHER THAT the Treasurer be designated as the “Collector” for the parcel tax 

roll.  
 
 089-2018         CARRIED 
 

  

444
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8.2 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – April 20th, 2018 NCRD Board Meeting – Port  Clements, 
B.C. 

 
 MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the report from 

staff entitled “April 20th, 2018 NCRD Board Meeting – Port Clements, B.C.” be 
received; 

 
 AND THAT a Regular meeting of the Board of the North Coast Regional District be 

held at the Village of Port Clements Council Chambers, 36 Cedar West, Port Clements, 
B.C. at 7:00 p.m. on April 20th, 2018; 

 
 AND THAT Option 3, as presented in the staff report entitled “April 20th, 2018 NCRD 

Board Meeting – Port Clements, B.C.” be selected as the preferred travel option. 
 
 090-2018         CARRIED 

 
8.3 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – Directors – Reimbursement of Travel and Other Expenses 

Policy Amendment 
 
 MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the report from staff 

entitled “Directors – Reimbursement of Travel and Other Expenses Policy 
Amendment” be received; 

 
 AND THAT the Directors – Reimbursement of Travel and Other Expenses Policy be 

amended as follows: 
 

 Replace all instances of the “Skeena-Queen Charlotte Regional District” with the 
“North Coast Regional District”; and 

 Add Subsection 3.10: “Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal 
Communities annual convention for Electoral Area Directors and Directors 
whose municipality is not a member within the Association of Vancouver Island 
and Coastal Communities”. 

 
 091-2018         CARRIED 

 
8.4 M. Williams, Planning Consultant – OCP and Zoning Amendment – Graham Island 
 
 MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the report from the 

consultant entitled “OCP and Zoning Amendment – Graham Island” be received; 
 
 AND THAT the zoning amendment application for 517 Lawn Hill Road (PID: 008-423-

865 & 013-768-344) be received for consideration. 
 
 092-2018         CARRIED 

 
MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the application for 517 
Lawn Hill Road be tabled until the March 23rd, 2018 North Coast Regional District 
Board meeting. 

 
  093-2018         CARRIED 
 
The Board of Directors directed staff to engage with the applicant to consider rezoning as per 
Alternate 1 of the consultant’s report entitled “OCP and Zoning Amendment – Graham Island”. 
 
9. BYLAWS 
 

None. 
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10. LAND REFERRALS / PLANNING 
 

None. 
 

11. NEW BUSINESS 
 

11.1 Director’s Reports 
 

MOVED by Alternate Director Cunningham, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the 
verbal reports from the Directors, as follows, be received: 
 
Director Thomas – Village of Port Clements 

 The Village received a response letter from the Canadian Radio-Television 
Communications with respect to cellular coverage on Haida Gwaii. The 
response letter was not positive and the Village will be reengaging the Ministry 
of Citizen’s Services to move forward on the issue; and 

 Community meetings are set to take place in the Village with respect to the 
development of a Community Forest plan for Haida Gwaii. 

 
Director Martin – Village of Queen Charlotte 

 The Village is considering revision to its official community plan and zoning 
bylaws;  

 Director Martin joined a teleconference with BC Ferries Advisory Committee 
Chairs to strategize how best to move forward lobbying BC Ferries and 
provincial Ministers to return BC Ferries to pre-2014 service levels; and 

 A referendum is scheduled to take place on February 24th, 2018 with respect to 
the purchase of land in the Village to support a waste water treatment plant. 

 
Director Franzen – District of Port Edward 

 The District secured grant funding to hire a grant writer for the District; 
 The District donated $250 toward the Prince Rupert Children’s Festival, 

scheduled to take place on March 3rd, 2018; 
 The District is working with CN Rail to design and construct a fence needed for 

public safety around rail tracks in the community; and 
 The District passed a road closure bylaw for Rainbow Avenue in the community. 

 
Director Brain – City of Prince Rupert 

 Director Brain attended meetings in Ottawa with Federal Ministers to discuss 
the Rural and Northern Communities Infrastructure Fund; 

 Director Brain met with officials in Alaska to discuss renovation of the Alaska 
Ferry Terminal and the vital transportation link between Alaska Ferries and BC 
Ferries; 

 The City will be hosting a community build day on March 4th, 2018 to begin 
development of the McKay Street Park; 

 The redeveloped Rushbrook walking trail will be opening soon; and 
 Director Brain is currently attending an Ecotrust Canada Fisheries conference 

in Vancouver, B.C. 
 

Chair Pages – Village of Masset 
 The Village is in the process of repealing its building inspection bylaw, following 

the death of the community’s building inspector. The Village will consider a 
siting and use bylaw in the interim; and 

 Community meetings, led by the Misty Isles Economic Development Society, 
are being held to discuss the development of a community forest for Haida 
Gwaii. 

 
094-2018         CARRIED 
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11.2 Edge of the World Music Festival’s application to Northern Development  Initiative 
Trust’s Fabulous Festivals and Events Program 

 
MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the Edge of the World 
Music Festival’s application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s Fabulous 
Festivals and Events Program be received; 
 
AND THAT the Board of the North Coast Regional District support the Edge of the 
World Music Festival’s application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s 
Fabulous Festivals and Events Program in the amount of $5,000, to be drawn from the 
North Coast Regional District nominal account. 
 
095-2018         CARRIED 
 

11.3 Card for Director Beldessi 
 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Board of the North 
Coast Regional District sign and send a card to Director Beldessi. 
 
096-2018         CARRIED 
 

12. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 None. 
 
13.  PUBLIC INPUT 
 

There were 0 questions from the public. 
 

14.  IN CAMERA 
 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the Board move to the In-
Camera meeting following the Regular meeting according to section 90(1)(j) of the Community 
Charter “information that is prohibited, or information that if it were presented in a document 
would be prohibited, from disclosure under section 21 of the Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act.” 
 
097-2018          CARRIED 

 
15.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Alternate Director Cunningham, that the North 
Coast Regional District Regular Board meeting be adjourned at 8:49 p.m. 

 
098-2018          CARRIED 
 
 
 
Approved and adopted:     Certified correct:   
 
 
 
 
_________________     ___________________ 

Chair        Corporate Officer 
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NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
  
 
 

MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Coast Regional District 
(NCRD) held at 344 2nd Avenue West in Prince Rupert, B.C. on Saturday, February 24, 
2018 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT         PRIOR TO ADOPTION

           
Chair B. Pages, Village of Masset       
 
Directors L. Brain, City of Prince Rupert (via teleconference) 
 B. Cunningham, Alternate, City of Prince Rupert 
  C. Mackenzie, Alternate, District of Port Edward  
 G. Martin Village of Queen Charlotte  
 U. Thomas, Village of Port Clements 
  D. Nobels, Electoral Area A  
 K. Bergman, Electoral Area C 
 M. Racz, Electoral Area D (via teleconference) 
 C. Wagner, Alternate, Electoral Area E (via teleconference) 

   
Regrets N. Kinney, City of Prince Rupert 
 D. Franzen, District of Port Edward  
 B. Beldessi, Electoral Area E 
 
Staff D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer  
 D. Fish, Corporate Officer  
 S. Gill, Treasurer 
 R. Kidd, Manager, Island Solid Waste  
       
Public 0 
Media 0 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 10:03 a.m. 
 
2. AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Alternate Director Cunningham, that the 
February 24, 2018 North Coast Regional District Regular amended agenda be adopted as 
presented. 
 
099-2018          CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES & BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 

None.    
            
4.  STANDING COMMITTEE/COMMISSION MINUTES – BUSINESS ARISING 
  
            None. 

 
5. DELEGATIONS 
   

None. 

8
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6. FINANCE  
 

Round 2 of the draft 2018-2022 North Coast Regional District (NCRD) Five- Year 
Financial Plan was distributed to the Board and is available on the  NCRD website. 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

7.1 Dodge Cove Recreation Society – 2018 Grant Request 
 
 MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Alternate Director Mackenzie, that the 

correspondence from Dodge Cove Recreation Society with respect to its 2018 grant 
request be received for information. 

 
100-2018         CARRIED 

 
8. REPORTS – RESOLUTIONS 
 
 8.1 D. Fish, Corporate Officer – PlaceSpeak – 2018 NCRD Budget Consultation 
 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the staff report 
entitled “PlaceSpeak – 2018 NCRD Budget Consultation” be received for information. 
 
101-2018         CARRIED 

 
9. FINANCIAL PLAN’S REVIEW 
 

9.1 Administration – Function 110   

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Board of the 

North Coast Regional District approve 2018 expenditures toward participation in the 

Northwest B.C. Resource Benefits Alliance in the amount of $120,000. 

 
102-2018              CARRIED 
 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Administration, Function 110, be referred to the Round 3 

budget discussions as amended to include the following: 

 

 Increase the property tax requisition in the amount of $120,000 to support 

Northwest BC Resource Benefits Alliance 2018 projected expenditures. 

 
103-2018              CARRIED 

 
 9.2 Electoral Area Administration – Function 120 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2017-2021 for Electoral Area Administration, Function 120, be referred 

to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
104-2018              CARRIED 

 
  

999



NCRD Regular (Round 2 Budget) Board Meeting Minutes                                                   February 24, 2018 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

9.3 Electoral Area E Administration – Function 121 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Electoral Area E Administration, Function 121, be 

referred to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
105-2018              CARRIED 

 
Rob Kidd joined the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 

9.4 Elections – Function 130 

 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Elections, Function 130, be referred to the Round 3 

budget discussions as presented. 

 
106-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.5 Grant-in-Aid Area E – Function 174 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Alternate Director Mackenzie, that the 

Five-Year Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid Area E, Function 174, be referred 

to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
107-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.6 Sandspit Fire – Function 210 

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Fire, Function 210, be referred to the Round 3 

budget discussions as presented. 

 
108-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.7 Emergency Programming – Area E – Function 229 

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Emergency Programming – Area E, Function 229, be 

referred to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
109-2018              CARRIED 

 
Director Brain left the meeting at 10:56 a.m. 
 
Director Bergman left the meeting at 10:57 a.m. 
 
Director Brain joined the meeting at 10:58 a.m. 
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9.8 Islands Solid Waste – Function 310-319 

 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Alternate Director Mackenzie, that the 

Five-Year Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Islands Solid Waste, Function 310-319, be 

referred to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
110-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.9 Regional Recycling (Mainland) – Function 340 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Alternate Director Cunningham, that the 

Five-Year Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Regional Recycling (Mainland), Function 340, 

be referred to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
111-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.10 Sandspit Community Hall – Function 735 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Alternate Director Mackenzie, that the 

Five-Year Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Community Hall, Function 735, be 

referred to the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
112-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.11 Sandspit Water – Function 810 

 

MOVED by Alternate Director Mackenzie, SECONDED by Director Thomas, that the 

Five-Year Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Water, Function 810, be referred to 

the Round 3 budget discussions as presented. 

 
113-2018              CARRIED 

 
MOVED by Alternate Director Cunningham, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that staff 
be directed to prepare a service establishment bylaw, to be considered by the Board, to 
support agencies such as the Museum of Northern B.C. and the Prince Rupert 
Performing Arts Centre. 
 
114-2018              CARRIED 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 
11. OLD BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

12. PUBLIC INPUT 
 

There were 0 questions from the public. 
 
13.  IN CAMERA 
 

None. 
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14.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by Director Thomas, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the North Coast Regional 
District Regular Board meeting be adjourned at 11:27 a.m. 

 
115-2018          CARRIED 
 
 
 
Approved and adopted:     Certified correct:   
 
 
 
 
_________________     ___________________ 

Chair        Corporate Officer 
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NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
  
 
 

MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the North Coast Regional District 
(NCRD) held via teleconference on Thursday, March 8th, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT         PRIOR TO ADOPTION

           
Chair B. Pages, Village of Masset       
 
Directors  N. Kinney, City of Prince Rupert 
 D. Franzen, District of Port Edward  
 G. Martin Village of Queen Charlotte  
  D. Nobels, Electoral Area A  
 K. Bergman, Electoral Area C 
 M. Racz, Electoral Area D 
    
Regrets L. Brain, City of Prince Rupert 
 U. Thomas, Village of Port Clements 
 B. Beldessi, Electoral Area E 
 
Staff D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer  
 D. Fish, Corporate Officer  
 S. Gill, Treasurer 
        
Public 0 
Media 0 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 7:05 p.m. 
 
2. AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Kinney, that the March 8, 2018 North 
Coast Regional District Regular amended agenda be adopted as presented. 
 
116-2018          CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES & BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 

None.    
            
4.  STANDING COMMITTEE/COMMISSION MINUTES – BUSINESS ARISING 
  
            None. 

 
5. DELEGATIONS 
   

None. 
 

6. FINANCE  
 

Round 3 of the draft 2018-2022 North Coast Regional District (NCRD) Five-Year Financial 
Plan was distributed to the Board and is available on the  NCRD website. 

  

13
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7. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None. 
 
8. REPORTS – RESOLUTIONS 
 
 8.1 D. Fish, Corporate Officer - PlaceSpeak – 2018 NCRD Budget Consultation 
 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the report from staff 
entitled “PlaceSpeak – 2018 NCRD Budget Consultation” be received for information. 

 
117-2018              CARRIED 

 
9. FINANCIAL PLAN’S REVIEW 
 

9.1 Administration – Function 110   

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Administration, Function 110, be approved as presented. 

 
118-2018              CARRIED 

 
 9.2 Electoral Area Administration – Function 120 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Kinney, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Electoral Area Administration, Function 120, be 

approved as presented. 

 
119-2018              CARRIED 

 

9.3 Electoral Area E Administration – Function 121 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Kinney, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Electoral Area E Administration, Function 121, be 

approved as presented. 

 
120-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.4 Elections – Function 130 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director  Kinney, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Elections, Function 130, be approved as presented. 

 
121-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.5 Grant-in-Aid (All) – Function 170 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid (All), Function 170, be approved as 

presented. 

 

122-2018              CARRIED 
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9.6 Grant-in-Aid Area A – Function 171 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid Area A, Function 171, be approved as 

presented. 

 
123-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.7 Grant-in-Aid Area C – Function 172 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid Area C, Function 172, be approved as 

presented. 

 
124-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.8 Grant-in-Aid Area D – Function 173 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid Area D, Function 173, be approved as 

presented. 

 
125-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.9 Grant-in-Aid Area E – Function 174 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Grant-in-Aid Area E, Function 174, be approved as 

presented. 

 
126-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.10 Member Municipality Debt – Function 190 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Member Municipality Debt, Function 190, be approved 

as presented. 

 
127-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.11 Sandspit Fire – Function 210 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Fire, Function 210, be approved as presented. 

 
128-2018              CARRIED 
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9.12 Emergency Programming – Areas A & C – Function 220 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Farnzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Emergency Programming – Areas A & C, Function 220, 

be approved as presented. 

 
129-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.13 Emergency Programming – Area D – Function 227 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Emergency Programming – Area D, Function 227, be 

approved as presented. 

 
130-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.14 Emergency Programming – Area E – Function 229 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Emergency Programming – Area E, Function 229, be 

approved as presented. 

 
131-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.15 Islands Solid Waste – Function 310-319 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Martin, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Islands Solid Waste, Function 310-319, be approved as 

presented. 

 
132-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.16 Regional Recycling (Mainland) – Function 340 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Regional Recycling (Mainland), Function 340, be 

approved as presented. 

 
133-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.17 Rural Land Use Planning – Function 510 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Kinney, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Rural Land Use Planning, Function 510, be approved as 

presented. 

 
134-2018              CARRIED 
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9.18 Economic Development – Function 570 

 

MOVED by Director Racz, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Economic Development, Function 570, be approved as 

presented. 

 
135-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.19 Prince Rupert Regional Archives – Function 710 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Prince Rupert Regional Archives, Function 710, be 

approved as presented. 

 
136-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.20 North Pacific Cannery – Function 715 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Bergman, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for North Pacific Cannery, Function 715, be approved as 

presented. 

 
137-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.21 Haida Gwaii Museum – Function 720 

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Haida Gwaii Museum, Function 720, be approved as 

presented. 

 
138-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.22 Vancouver Island Regional Library – Function 725 

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Vancouver Island Regional Library, Function 725, be 

approved as presented. 

 
139-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.23 Haida Gwaii Recreation – Function 730 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Haida Gwaii Recreation, Function 730, be approved as 

presented. 

 
140-2018              CARRIED 
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9.24 Sandspit Community Hall – Function 735 

 

MOVED by Director Martin, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Community Hall, Function 735, be approved as 

presented. 

 
141-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.25 Mainland Recreation Area A – Function 751 

 

MOVED by Director Nobels, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Mainland Recreation Area A, Function 751, be approved 

as presented. 

 
142-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.26 Mainland Recreation Area C – Function 752 

 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Racz, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Mainland Recreation Area C, Function 752, be approved 

as presented. 

 
143-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.27 Feasibility Studies – Function 901 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Feasibility Studies, Function 901, be approved as 

presented. 

 
144-2018              CARRIED 

 
9.28 Sandspit Water – Function 810 

 

MOVED by Director Kinney, SECONDED by Director Franzen, that the Five-Year 

Financial Plan 2018-2022 for Sandspit Water, Function 810, be approved as presented. 

 
145-2018              CARRIED 

 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 
11. OLD BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

12. PUBLIC INPUT 
 

There were 0 questions from the public. 
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13.  IN CAMERA 
 

None. 
 
14.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by Director Franzen, SECONDED by Director Nobels, that the North Coast Regional 
District Regular Board meeting be adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

 
146-2018          CARRIED 
 
 
 
Approved and adopted:     Certified correct:   
 
 
 
 
_________________     ___________________ 

Chair        Corporate Officer 
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NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
         ELECTORAL AREA ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the Electoral Area Advisory Committee meeting held at 344 2nd Avenue West 

in Prince Rupert, B.C. on Friday, November 24, 2017 at 6:15 p.m. 
 
PRESENT            

         
Chair: Des Nobels, Electoral Area A  
 
Directors: Karl Bergman, Electoral Area C 

Bill Beldessi, Electoral Area E  
 
Regrets: Michael Racz, Electoral Area D 
  
Staff: D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer 
 D. Fish, Corporate Officer 
 S. Gill, Treasurer 
  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 6:02 p.m. 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA  
 

MOVED by Director Beldessi, SECONDED by Director Bergman, that the November 24, 
2017 Electoral Area Advisory Committee agenda be adopted as presented. 
  

 027-2017                CARRIED 
 
3. MINUTES 
 

3.1 Minutes of the Electoral Area Advisory Committee meeting held September 22, 
2017 

 
MOVED by Director Bergman, SECONDED by Director Beldessi, that the 
minutes of the September 22, 2017 Electoral Area Advisory Committee meeting 
be adopted as presented. 
 
028-2017               CARRIED 

 
4. FINANCE 
 

None. 
 

5. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

None. 
 
6. REPORTS 
  

None. 
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7. NEW BUSINESS 

7.1 Tlell Fall Fair Committee application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s 
Community Halls and Recreation Facilities Program 

 
MOVED by Director Beldessi, SECONDED by Director Bergman, that the Tlell 
Fall Fair Committee’s application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s 
Community Halls and Recreation Facilities program be received; 
 
AND THAT the Electoral Area Advisory Committee recommend the Board of the 
North Coast Regional District support the Tlell Fall Fair Committee’s application 
to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s Community Halls and Recreation 
Facilities program in the amount of $15,276, to be drawn from the North Coast 
Regional District nominal account. 

 
029-2017               CARRIED 

7.2 Haida Gwaii Museum application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s 
Marketing Initiatives Program 

 
MOVED by Director Beldessi, SECONDED by Director Bergman, that the Haida 
Gwaii Museum’s application to Northern Development Initiative Trust’s Marketing 
Initiatives program be received; 
 
AND THAT the Haida Gwaii Museum’s application to Northern Development 
Initiative Trust’s Marketing Initiatives program be deferred to a later meeting date.  
 
030-2017        CARRIED 
 

8. OLD BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

9. PUBLIC INPUT 
 
 There were 0 questions from the public. 
 
10. IN CAMERA 
 
 None. 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by Director Beldessi, SECONDED by Director Bergman, that the meeting be 
adjourned at 6:28 p.m. 

 
031-2017                CARRIED 
 
 
Approved & Adopted:     Certified correct:   

   
 
________________________   ________________________ 
Chair       Corporate Officer 
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  NORTH COAST REGIONAL DISTRICT 
 

MORESBY ISLAND MANAGEMENT STANDING COMMITTEE 
  
MINUTES of the Regular Meeting of the Moresby Island Management Standing 

Committee (MIMSC) held at Sandspit Community Centre, Sandspit, B.C. 
on January 29, 2018 at 7:00 PM.   

  
 Adopted Mach 6, 2018 
 
PRESENT Behn Cochrane, Bill Quaas, Stan Hovde 
    
ABSENT Absent:  Gail Henry, Bill Beldessi      

      
Chair Gail Henry   
 
Vice Chair Behn Cochrane 
   
Staff Barb Parser  
 
Public 6 
   
1. CALL TO ORDER  7:14 PM 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA (additions/deletions)  
 
 2.1 Agenda January 2018 
 
 001-2018 MOTION to adopt agenda as amended moved by Stan Hovde,  
   seconded by Bill Quaas, Carried  
 
3. MINUTES & BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 
             3.1  Minutes  December 2017 
 
             002-2018 MOTION to adopt and file December Minutes, moved by Stan 

 Hovde, seconded by Bill Quaas, Carried  
     
4. DELEGATIONS 
 
 4.1 Evan Putterill-Gwaii Tel-City West Sub-Sea Fibre Project 
 
 003-2018 MOTION to invite Gwaii Communications to next MIMSC meeting, 

  March 6th to provide an update moved by Bill Quaas, seconded  
  by Stan Hovde, Carried 

 
 4.2 MIAPC-Doug Gould-Update MMAC LOO Renewal Application 
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5. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

5.1 VIRL Sandspit-SD50 Reply, Community Concerns 
 
004-2018 MOTION to receive and file correspondence from SD50 moved by 

 Bill Quaas, seconded by Stan Hovde, Carried 
 
5.2 WCB Training-Email from Joan Perry 
 
005-2018 MOTION to receive and file correspondence received from Joan 

 Perry moved by Bill Quaas, seconded by Stan Hovde, Carried 
  

6. REPORTS – RESOLUTIONS 
 

6.1 Water Operators Report 
 
6.2  Directors Report - None 
 
006-2018 MOTION to receive and file reports 6.1, 6.2 moved by   
  Bill Quaas, seconded by Stan Hovde, Carried 

     
7. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 7.1 AED in Post Office-Expired Battery, Check Paddles 
 
 007-2018 MOTION that MIMSC seek to enter into an agreement with RD  
   and BC Pad program moved by Stan Hovde, seconded by Bill  
   Quaas, Carried 
 
 7.2 Electronic Vote:  Ratification of Motion, SVFD Letter of Support for  
  funding from GT Major Contributions Fund 
 
 008-2018 MOTION to ratify electronic vote motion 008-2018 moved by Bill  
   Quaas, seconded by Stan Hovde, Carried 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS None 

 
9.  PUBLIC INPUT 
  
10.  IN CAMERA   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

232323



11.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

009-2018 Motion to Adjourn by Behn Cochrane, 8:10 PM, Carried 
 
Approved and adopted:     Certified correct: 

  
 
 
_________________     _______________________ 
             Chair         Secretary 
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Payable To Date Amount Purpose

Big Red Enterprises Ltd. 6-Feb 17,310.57$             January Garbage Collection

Pacific Blue Cross 6-Feb 7,194.61$               
January PBC & BC Life 

Premiums

Kitimat-Stikine RD 6-Feb 27,722.60$             NWRBC Contribution for 2017

Ticker's Hauling & Storage 6-Feb 7,402.50$               
Transport recyclables and 

building, cube van, excavator, 

forklift & porto toilet rental

Upanup Studios 6-Feb 11,746.35$             
RD Rebranding & Website 

Projects

Municipal Pension Plan 7-Feb 6,554.61$               
Payroll Remittance               

(PP3-2018)

Receiver General 7-Feb 11,786.70$             
Payroll Remittance               

(PP3-2018)

Municipal Pension Plan 27-Feb 6,537.84$               
Payroll Remittance               

(PP4-2018)

Receiver General 27-Feb 13,887.07$             
Payroll Remittance               

(PP4-2018)

110,142.85$           

51,153.39$             

161,296.24$           

North Coast Regional District
Cheques payable over $5,000 - FEBRUARY, 2018

CHEQUES OVER $5,000:    

CHEQUES UNDER $5,000:    

TOTAL CHEQUES:    

F:\Cheques Over $5000\2018\CHQS OVER $5000 - 2018
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SPECIAL	RESOLUTIONS	

SR	1	Special	Resolution	to	Amend	AVICC’s	Constitution	 AVICC	Executive	

WHEREAS	the	AVICC’s	Constitution	must	comply	with	the	new	Societies	Act	before	November,	2018;	
and	

WHEREAS	the	AVICC’s	current	Constitution	does	not	address	the	requirement	in	the	Act	to	designate	
as	either	member	funded	or	non-member	funded;	

THEREFORE	BE	 IT	RESOLVED	that	The	Association	of	Vancouver	 Island	and	Coastal	Communities	be	
designated	 a	 Member-funded	 Society,	 and	 the	 Society’s	 Constitution	 be	 amended	 to	 include	 the	
following	statement:	

Section	3.	MEMBER-FUNDED	
“This	 society	 is	 a	member-funded	society.	 It	 is	 funded	primarily	by	 its	members	 to	 carry	on	
activities	 for	 the	 benefit	 of	 its	members.	 On	 its	 liquidation	 or	 dissolution,	 this	 society	may	
distribute	its	money	and	other	property	to	its	members.”	

SR	2	Special	Resolution	to	Repeal	and	Replace	AVICC’s	Bylaws	 AVICC	Executive	

WHEREAS	 the	 review	 of	 the	 AVICC’s	 Bylaws	 for	 compliance	 with	 the	 new	 Societies	 Act	 identified	
several	areas	 that	could	be	 improved	to	make	the	bylaws	clearer	and	to	reflect	current	 technology	
options;	and	

WHEREAS	 the	AVICC’s	Bylaws	have	already	been	amended	several	 times	 in	 the	 last	15	years	and	a	
replacement	incorporating	direction	from	the	previous	bylaws	is	appropriate;	

THEREFORE	 BE	 IT	 RESOLVED	 that	 the	 Bylaws	 of	 the	 Association	 of	 Vancouver	 Island	 and	 Coastal	
Communities	be	repealed	and	replaced	as	set	out	 in	Schedule	A	as	distributed	to	members	by	mail	
and	email	on	March	9th,	2018.	

Schedule	A	

Attached	

SR	3		 Special	Resolution	to	Amend	AVICC’s	Bylaws	if SR 2 Not Endorsed AVICC	Executive	

WHEREAS	the	AVICC’s	Bylaws	currently	state	that	a	director	of	the	AVICC	Executive	Committee	must	
not	be	remunerated	for	being	or	acting	as	a	director;	and	

WHEREAS	 it	 is	deemed	appropriate	to	pay	a	reasonable	per	diem	for	preparation	and	attendance	
at	Executive	Committee	meetings,	and	this	has	been	addressed	in	the	new	bylaws	proposed	in	SR 2;	
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THEREFORE	BE	 IT	RESOLVED	that	 if	AVICC	members	do	not	endorse	SR	2	to	repeal	and	replace	the	
current	bylaws	at	the	2018	AGM	and	Convention,	the	existing	bylaws	of	the	Society	be	amended	as	
follows:	

a. Section	30	be	deleted	and	replaced	as	follows:

30. Directors	may	be	paid	a	reasonable	per	diem	rate	for	attendance	at	members’	meetings	and
events	at	a	rate	to	be	determined	by	the	Executive	 from	time	to	time	and	shall	be	entitled	to
be reimbursed	 for	 all	 expenses	 necessarily	 and	 reasonably	 incurred	 by	 the	 director	 while
engaged in	the	affairs	of	the	Society.

EXECUTIVE	RESOLUTION	

ER	1		Determining	Term	of	Office	for	Table	Officers	 AVICC	Executive	

WHEREAS	the	current	policies	of	the	Association	of	Vancouver	Island	and	Coastal	Communities	allow	
the	President	to	be	elected	for	two	one	year	terms;	and	

WHEREAS	guidance	is	sought	from	the	membership	on	whether	a	single	term	is	more	appropriate	for	
elected	service	in	each	of	the	Table	Officer	positions;	

THEREFORE	BE	IT	RESOLVED	that	AVICC	Executive Policies	be	amended	to	set	a	one	year	term	for	the	
President,	 1st	 Vice	 President	 and	 2nd	 Vice	 President	 except	 in	 extenuating/extraordinary	
circumstances	 such	 as	illness	or	the	removal	of	an	Executive	Member	from	their	respective	member	
organization).	

2	
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SCHEDULE	A:		Bylaws	of	

The	Association	of	Vancouver	Island	Coastal	Communities	
(the	“Society”)	

Part	1 	–	DEFINITIONS	AND	INTERPRETATION

Definitions	

1.1 In	these	Bylaws:	

“Act”	means	the	Societies	Act	of	British	Columbia	as	amended	from	time	to	time;	

“AGM”	means	the	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Society;	

“Bylaws”	means	these	Bylaws	as	amended	from	time	to	time;	

“Member’s	Administrator”	means	the	Chief	Administrative	Officer	of	the	Member,	or	their	
appointed	subordinate,	who		has	authority	to	act	on	that	Member’s	behalf,	including	with	
respect	to	receiving	notice	and	communications	by	the	Society,	but	who	carries	no	voting	
rights;	

“Director”	or	“Directors”	means	the	person(s)	elected	or	appointed	to	the	Executive	in	
accordance	with	these	Bylaws;	

“Electoral	Areas”	has	the	meaning	set	out	in	the	Local	Government	Act,	RSBC	2015	c	1,	as	
amended	form	time	to	time;	

	“Executive”	means	the	board	of	directors	of	the	Society,	comprised	of	the	President,	First	
Vice-President,	Second	Vice-President,	Electoral	Representative,	the	immediate	Past	
President	and	the	Directors	at	Large	elected		by	the	Members	at	the	AGM;	

“Executive	Policies”	means	the	policies	pertaining	to	the	Society	as	approved	by	a	majority	
of	the	Executive	from	time	to	time,	which	shall	be	made	available	to	the	Members;	

“Member”	means	a	Member	admitted	under	section	3.2	of	these	Bylaws	who	has	not	
ceased	to	be	a	Member;	

“Member’s	Representative”	means	persons	who	are	officials	of	Members	by	virtue	of	
having	been	elected	in	accordance	with	the	laws	of	British	Columbia	or	Canada,	for	as	long	
as	they	hold	office;	

“Officer”	or	“Officers”	means	the	President,	First	Vice-President,	Second	Vice-President,	
Past	President,	Secretary	and	Treasurer;	

“Table	Officers”	means	the	President,	First	Vice-President,	Second	Vice-President,	and	the	
Past	President.	
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Definitions	in	Act	apply	

1.2 The	definitions	in	the	Act	apply	to	these	Bylaws.	

Conflict	with	Act	or	regulations	

1.3 If	there	is	a	conflict	between	these	Bylaws	and	the	Act	or	the	regulations	under	the	Act,	the	
Act	or	the	regulations,	as	the	case	may	be,	prevail.	

Interpretation	

1.4 In	these	Bylaws,	unless	the	context	otherwise	requires,	words	imparting	the	singular	
number	or	the	masculine	gender	shall	include	the	plural	number	or	the	feminine	gender,	as	
the	case	may	be,	and	vice	versa.		The	division	of	these	Bylaw	into	articles	and	sections	and	
the	insertion	of	headings	are	for	convenience	of	reference	only	and	shall	not	affect	the	
construction	or	interpretation	hereof.		Unless	otherwise	provided,	each	reference	to	an	
article	or	a	section	is	to	the	corresponding	article	or	section	hereof.		Whenever	the	words	
"include",	"includes"	or	"including"	are	used	in	this	Bylaw,	unless	the	context	otherwise	
requires,	such	words	shall	be	deemed	in	each	instance	to	be	followed	by	the	words	"without	
limitation."	

Part	2 –	GENERAL	

Registered	Office	

2.1 The	registered	office	of	the	Society	shall	be	in	the	Province	of	British	Columbia.	

Financial	Year	

2.2 Unless	otherwise	approved	by	the	Executive,	the	financial	year	of	the	Society	shall	end	on	
the	31st	day	of	December	in	each	year.	

Maintenance	of	Records	

2.3 The	Executive	shall	see	that	all	necessary	books	and	records	of	the	Society	required	by	these	
Bylaws	or	by	any	applicable	statute	or	law	are	regularly	and	properly	kept.	

Part	3 –	MEMBERS

Eligibility	for	Membership	

3.1 The	following	entities	shall	be	eligible	for	membership	in	the	Society:	

(a) the	cities,	districts,	townships,	towns,	villages	and	regional	districts	located	within	or	partly
within	the	following	Regional	Districts:	Alberni-Clayoquot,	Capital	Regional,	Central	Coast,
Comox	Valley,	Cowichan	Valley,	Mount	Waddington,	Nanaimo,	North	Coast,	Powell	River,
Strathcona	and	Sunshine	Coast;
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(b) the	Islands	Trust;	and

(c) other local governments located within or partly within the regional districts listed in
section 3.1(a) or located within the Islands Trust .

Application	for	membership	

3.2 An	entity	set	out	in	section	3	may	apply	to	the	Executive	for	membership	in	the	Society,	and	
the	person	becomes	a	Member	on	the	Executive’s	acceptance	of	the	application.		In	
considering	an	application	for	membership,	the	Executive	will	have	regard	to	the	criteria	for	
membership	set	out	in	the	Executive	Policies.	

Life	Members	

3.3 The	Executive	may	grant	Life	Memberships	to	persons	who	meet	the	criteria	set	out	in	the	
Executive	Policies.		Life	Members	shall	have	the	rights	set	out	in	the	Executive	Policies,	but	
shall	not	be	entitled	to	vote	unless	also	serving	as	a	Member’s	Representative.	

3.4 All	Past-Presidents	of	the	Society	shall	be	admitted	as	Life	Members.	

	Duties	of	members	

3.5 Every	Member	must	uphold	the	constitution	of	the	Society	and	must	comply	with	these	
Bylaws.	

Appointment	of	Member’s	Administrator	

3.6 Each	Member	must	confirm	the	contact	information	and	provide	an	email	address	for	the	
Member’s	Administrator	on	being	accepted	as	a	Member	of	the	Society.	

Amount	of	membership	dues	

3.7 The	amount	of	the	annual	membership	dues	and	payment	dates	will	be	set	out	in	the	
Executive	Policies.	

Member	not	in	good	standing	

3.8 A	Member	is	not	in	good	standing	if	the	Member	fails	to	pay	the	Member’s	annual	
membership	dues,	if	any,	and	the	Member	is	not	in	good	standing	for	so	long	as	those	dues	
remain	unpaid.	

Member	not	in	good	standing	may	not	vote	

3.9 Where		a	Member	is	not	in	good	standing:	

(a) its	Member’s	Representatives	may	not	vote	at	a	general	meeting,	and

(b) it	is	deemed	not	to	be	a	voting	Member	for	the	purpose	of	its	Member’s
Representatives	consenting	to	a	resolution	of	the	voting	Members.
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Termination	of	membership		

3.10 A	Member	shall	cease	to	be	a	Member:	

(a) if	the	Member	is	not	in	good	standing	for	6	consecutive	months;	

(b) by	delivering	the	Member’s	resignation	in	writing	to	the	Secretary	of	the	Society	or	
by	mailing	it	or	delivering	it	to	address	of	the	Society,	such	resignation	to	be	
effective	upon	delivery	or	at	the	time	specified	in	the	written	resignation,	whichever	
is	earlier;	

(c) on	being	expelled	in	accordance	with	these	bylaws;	or	

(d) on	the	Member’s	dissolution.	

Expulsion	of	Member	

3.11 A	Member	may	be	expelled	by	a	special	resolution	of	the	Members	passed	at	a	general	
meeting	provided	that:	

(a) a	notice	of	special	resolution	for	expulsion,	along	with	a	brief	statement	of	the	
reason(s)		for	the	proposed	expulsion	is	provided	14	days	in	advance	of	the	general	
meeting;	and	

(b) the	Member	who	is	the	subject	of	the	proposed	resolution	for	expulsion	shall	be	
given	an	opportunity	to	be	heard	at	a	general	meeting	before	the	special	resolution	
is	put	to	a	vote.			

Transferability	

3.12 Membership	is	not	transferable.	

Part	4 	–	GENERAL	MEETINGS	OF	MEMBERS		

Time	and	place	of	general	meeting		

4.1 A	general	meeting	must	be	called	at	least	once	in	each	calendar	year.		General	meetings	
shall	be	held	in	British	Columbia	at	the	time	and	place	determined	by	the	Executive.	

Calling	of	Meetings	

4.2 The	Executive			shall	have	power	to	call,	at	any	time,	a	general	meeting.		In	addition,	the	
Executive	shall	call	a	general	meeting	on	written	requisition	of	Member’s	Representatives	
holding	at	least	ten	percent	of	the	votes	that	may	be	cast	at	a	general	meeting	of	the	
Members.	
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Notice	of	Meeting	

4.3 Written	notice	of	the	date,	time	and	location	of	a	general	meeting	shall	be	sent	to	every	
Member	whose	name	is	entered	in	the	register	of	Members	at	the	close	of	business	on	the	
record	date	for	notice	at	least	14	days,	and	not	more	than	60	days,	before	the	meeting.			

4.4 Notice	of	general	meetings	shall	be	given	by	e-mail,	mail,	courier	or	personal	delivery	to	
each	Member	entitled	to	attend	such	meeting,	or	to	a	Member’s	Administrator,	as	
applicable.	

4.5 Notice	of	a	general	meeting	must	state	the	nature	of	the	business	to	be	transacted	at	the	
meeting	and	shall	include	the	text	of	any	special	resolution	proposed,	together	with	
sufficient	detail	of	any	special	business	to	permit	a	Member	receiving	the	notice	to	form	a	
reasoned	judgment	concerning	that	business.	

Accidental	Omission	

4.6 The	accidental	omission	to	give	notice	of	a	meeting	to,	or	the	non-receipt	of	a	notice	by,	any	
of	the	Members	entitled	to	receive	notice	does	not	invalidate	proceedings	at	that	meeting.	

Ordinary	business	at	general	meeting		

4.7 At	a	general	meeting,	special	business	is	all	business	conducted	at	a	general	meeting,	except	
the	following:	

(a) adoption	of	rules	of	order;	

(b) consideration	of	any	financial	statements	of	the	Society	presented	to	the	meeting;	

(c) consideration	of	the	reports,	if	any,	of	the	Executive	or	auditor;		

(d) election	or	appointment	of	directors;		

(e) appointment	of	an	auditor,	if	any;		

(f) business	arising	out	of	a	report	of	the	Executive	not	requiring	the	passing	of	a	
special	resolution.			

Chair	of	general	meeting		

4.8 The	following	individual	is	entitled	to	preside	as	the	chair	of	a	general	meeting:	

(a) the	President;	

(b) the	First		Vice-President,	if	the	President	is	unable	to	preside	as	the	chair;		

(c) the	Second	Vice-President,	if	the	President	and	First	Vice-President	are	unable	to	
preside	as	the	chair;	or	
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(d) In	the	absence	of	the	President,	First	Vice-President	and	Second	Vice-President,	one	
of	the	other	Directors	present.	

Alternate	chair	of	general	meeting		

4.9 If	there	is	no	individual	entitled	under	these	Bylaws	who	is	able	to	preside	as	the	chair	of	a	
general	meeting	within	15	minutes	from	the	time	set	for	holding	the	meeting,	the	Member	
Representatives	who	are	present	must	elect	an	individual	present	at	the	meeting	to	preside	
as	the	chair.	

Persons	entitled	to	be	present	

4.10 The	only	persons	entitled	to	attend	a	general	meeting	shall	be	the	Members,	the		Life	
Members,	the	Members’	Representatives,	the	Directors	and	the	auditor,	if	any.		Any	other	
persons	may	be	admitted	only	on	the	invitation	of	the		Executive.		For	greater	certainty,	only	
Member’s	Representatives	will	have	the	right	to	speak	and	vote	at	such	meetings	although	
others	present	at	such	meetings	in	accordance	with	these	bylaws	shall	be	allowed	to	speak	
with	the	consent	of	the	meeting.	

Quorum	required		

4.11 Business,	other	than	the	election	of	the	chair	of	the	meeting	and	the	adjournment	or	
termination	of	the	meeting,	must	not	be	transacted	at	a	general	meeting	unless	a	quorum	of	
voting	Members	is	present.	

Quorum	for	general	meetings		

4.12 The	quorum	for	the	transaction	of	business	at	a	general	meeting	is	20	voting	members,	
which	shall	be	determined	by	at	least	20	Member’s	Representatives,	representing	different	
Members,	being	present.		No	business	shall	be	transacted	at	a	general	meeting	unless	a	
quorum	of	Members	is	present.	

Lack	of	quorum	at	commencement	of	meeting		

4.13 If,	within	30	minutes	from	the	time	set	for	holding	a	general	meeting,	a	quorum	of	voting	
Members	is	not	present,	the	meeting	stands	adjourned	to	the	same	day	in	the	next	week,	at	
the	same	time	and	place,	and	if,	at	the	continuation	of	the	adjourned	meeting,	a	quorum	is	
not	present	within	30	minutes	from	the	time	set	for	holding	the	continuation	of	the	
adjourned	meeting,	the	Member’s	Representatives	who	are	present	constitute	a	quorum	for	
that	meeting.	

If	quorum	ceases	to	be	present		

4.14 If,	at	any	time	during	a	general	meeting,	there	ceases	to	be	a	quorum	of	voting	Members	
present,	business	then	in	progress	must	be	suspended	until	there	is	a	quorum	present	or	
until	the	meeting	is	adjourned	or	terminated.	
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Adjournments	by	chair		

4.15 The	chair	of	a	general	meeting	may,	or,	if	so	directed	by	the	Member’s	Representatives	at	
the	meeting,	must,	adjourn	the	meeting	from	time	to	time	and	from	place	to	place,	but	no	
business	may	be	transacted	at	the	continuation	of	the	adjourned	meeting	other	than	
business	left	unfinished	at	the	adjourned	meeting.	

Notice	of	continuation	of	adjourned	general	meeting		

4.16 It	is	not	necessary	to	give	notice	of	a	continuation	of	an	adjourned	general	meeting	or	of	the	
business	to	be	transacted	at	a	continuation	of	an	adjourned	general	meeting	except	that,	
when	a	general	meeting	is	adjourned	for	30	days	or	more,	notice	of	the	continuation	of	the	
adjourned	meeting	must	be	given.	

Voting	

4.17 The	Member	Representatives	of	each	Member	having	the	right	to	vote	on	a	matter	shall	
each	be	entitled	to	one	vote	on	such	matter.		No	Member	Representative	shall	have	more	
than	one	vote,	regardless	of	whether	they	represent	more	than	one	Member.	

Methods	of	voting		

4.18 Every	question	at	a	general	meeting	shall	be	decided	on	by	a	show	of	hands,	expect	for	the	
election	of	directors	which	shall	occur	by	ballot.	

4.19 Notwithstanding	the	voting	procedures	set	out	above,	voting	may	occur	at	a	general	
meeting	by	electronic	means	approved	by	the	Executive.		The	Executive	may	establish	rules	
for	voting	by	electronic	means,	provided	such	rules	allow	Member	Representatives	
reasonable	access	to	voting	and	ensure	confidentiality,	security	and	integrity	of	the	voting	
process.	

Announcement	of	result	

4.20 Whenever	a	vote	has	occurred,		a	declaration	by	the	chair	that	the	vote	has	been	carried,	
carried	by	a	particular	majority,	or	not	carried,	and	an	entry	to	that	effect	in	the	minutes	of	
the	meeting,	shall	be	prima	facie	evidence	of	the	fact	without	proof	of	the	number	or	
proportion	of	votes	recorded	in	favour	of	or	against	any	resolution	or	other	proceeding	in	
respect	of	the	said	question,	and	the	results	of	the	vote	so	taken	shall	be	the	decision	of	
Members	upon	the	said	question.	

Attendance	by	electronic	means	

4.21 No	general	meetings	shall	be	held	by	teleconference,	videoconference	or	other	electronic	
means.		

Proxy	voting	not	permitted		

4.22 Voting	by	proxy	is	not	permitted.	
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Casting	Vote	

4.23 In	the	case	of	an	equality	of	votes,	the	chair	shall	not	have	a	casting	or	second	vote.			

Matters	decided	at	general	meeting	by	ordinary	resolution		

4.24 A	matter	to	be	decided	at	a	general	meeting	must	be	decided	by	ordinary	resolution	unless	
the	matter	is	required	by	the	Act	or	these	Bylaws	to	be	decided	by	special	resolution	or	by	
another	resolution	having	a	higher	voting	threshold	than	the	threshold	for	an	ordinary	
resolution.	

Member’s	Resolutions	at	AGM	

4.25 Voting	Members	,	either	via	its	Members’	Administrator	or	its	Member	Representatives,	
may	submit	resolutions	to	be	considered	at	the	AGM	in	accordance	with	the	policies	and	
procedures		set	out	in	the	Executive	Policies,	which	may	include,	but	are	not	limited	to	
submission	deadlines,	late	submission	deadlines,	mechanisms	for	block	voting	and	delivery	
requirements.	

Executive	Resolutions	

4.26 Notwithstanding	anything	in	these	Bylaws	to	the	contrary,	the	Executive	may	submit	any	
matter	not	requiring	a	special	resolution	to	the	Members	at	a	general	meeting	at	any	time.	

Part	5 –	DIRECTORS	

Number	of	Directors	on	the	Executive		

5.1 The	number	of	Directors	must	be	8	or	a	greater	number	determined	from	time	to	time	by	
the	Members.	

Composition	of	the	Executive	

5.2 The	Executive	shall	consist	of	the	following	positions:	

(a) President;	

(b) immediate	Past-President;	

(c) first	Vice-President;	

(d) second	Vice-President;	

(e) Electoral	Area	Representative;	and	

(f) Directors	at	large.	
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Authority	and	Responsibility	

5.3 Subject	to	the	provisions	of	the	Act	and	these	Bylaws,	the	Executive	shall	manage	or	
supervise	the	management	of	the	Society.	

Election	of	directors		

5.4 At	each	AGM,	the	voting	Members	entitled	to	vote	for	the	election	of	directors	must	elect	
the	Executive.		Each	Director	will	be	elected	to	a	specific	position	on	the	Executive,	
excepting	the	outgoing	president	who	will	be	appointed	to	hold	his	or	her	position	of	the	
Executive.	

Election	of	Electoral	Area	Representative	

5.5 Only	Member’s	Representatives	of	the	Society	representing	Electoral	Areas	are	entitled	to	
vote	for	the	position	of	Electoral	Area	Representative.	

Acclamation	

5.6 An	election	may	be	by	acclamation,	otherwise	it	must	be	conducted	by	ballot.	

Nominations	

5.7 The	Executive	may	establish	nomination	procedures	for	the	election	of	directors,	which	
procedures	shall	be	set	out	in	the	Executive	Policies.	

Qualifications	of	Directors	

5.8 In	addition	to	the	qualifications	of	Directors	set	out	in	the	Act,	all	directors	must	be	a	
Member’s	Representative.	

Executive	may	fill	casual	vacancy	on	Executive		

5.9 The	Executive	may,	at	any	time,	appoint	a	Member’s	Representative	as	a	director	to	fill	a	
vacancy	that	arises	on	the	Executive	as	a	result	of	the	resignation,	death	or	incapacity	of	a	
director	during	the	director’s	term	of	office.	

Term	of	appointment	of	director	filling	casual	vacancy		

5.10 A	director	appointed	by	the	Executive	to	fill	a	vacancy	ceases	to	be	a	director	at	the	end	of	
the	next	AGM.	

Termination	of	Directorship	

5.11 A	person	shall	immediately	cease	to	be	a	Director	of	the	Society:		

(a) upon	delivering	his	or	her	resignation	in	writing	to	the	secretary	of	the	Society	or	
upon	delivering	it	to	the	address	of	the	Society;		
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(b) ceasing	to	be	a	Member’s	Representative	by	reason	of	ceasing	to	be	an	elected	
official	of	that	Member;		

(c) on	being	elected	to	a	provincial	or	federal		office;	

(d) on	ceasing	to	be	qualified	as	a	Director	under	the	Act	or	these	Bylaws;	

(e) upon	his	or	her	death;	or	

(f) by	special	resolution	of	the	Members	removing	a	director.	

Director	seeking	provincial	of	federal	office			

5.12 A	director	may	remain	on	the	Executive	while	seeking	a	nomination	for	provincial	or	federal	
office.	If	the	director	is	successful	in	securing	the	nomination,	he/she	will	take	a	leave	of	
absence	from	the	Executive	until	the	election	is	over.	If	successful	in	the	election,	the	
director	will	resign	from	the	Executive;	if	not	successful	the	director	may	return	to	the	
Executive.			

Part	6 	–	DIRECTORS’	MEETINGS		

Calling	Executive	meeting		

6.1 The	Secretary,	on	the	request	of	any	two	Directors,	shall	call	a	meeting	of	the	Executive.	

Number	of	meetings	

6.2 There	shall	be	a	minimum	of	one	meeting	of	the	Executive	per	year	or	such	greater	number	
of	meetings	as	is	determined,	from	time	to	time,	by	the	Executive.	

Notice	of	Executive	meeting		

6.3 Notice	of	an	Executive	meeting	may	be	given	by	mail,	telephone,	fax,	email	or	other	means	
of	recorded	electronic	communication	to	each	director	not	less	than	seven	days	prior	to	the	
Executive	meeting,	unless	all	directors	agree	otherwise.	

Content	of	Notice	

6.4 A	notice	of	the	meeting	of	the	Executive	need	not	specify	the	purpose	of	or	the	business	to	
be	transacted	at	the	meeting,	except	that	a	notice	of	a	meeting	of	directors	shall	provide	
notice	of	any	of	the	following	matters	to	be	dealt	with	at	the	meeting:	

(a) submit	to	the	Members	any	question	or	matter	requiring	the	approval	of	Members;	

(b) fill	a	vacancy	among	the	directors	or	to	appoint	additional	directors	between	AGMs;	
or	

(c) approve	the	Annual	Financial	Statements.	
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Waiver	of	Notice	

6.5 The	attendance	of	a	director	at	a	meeting	of	the	Executive	is	a	waiver	of	notice	of	the	
meeting,	except	if	the	director	attends	a	meeting	for	the	express	purpose	of	objecting	to	the	
transaction	of	any	business	on	the	grounds	that	the	meeting	is	not	lawfully	called.			

Regular	meetings	

6.6 The	Executive	may,	by	resolution	of	the	Executive,	establish	the	date,	time	and	place	of	
regular	meetings	of	the	Executive.		A	copy	of	such	resolution	or	a	list	of	such	dates,	time,	
and	places	shall	be	sent	to	each	director	immediately	following	the	passage	of	such	
resolution	and	no	further	notice	of	these	scheduled	meetings	will	be	required	to	be	sent	
notwithstanding	section	6.4.	

Conduct	of	Executive	meetings		

6.7 The	Executive	may	regulate	their	meetings	and	proceedings	as	they	think	fit,	provided	that	
in	the	event	of	a	conflict	these	bylaws	shall	prevail.	

Attending	by	Teleconference,	Videoconference	and	other	electronic	means	

6.8 Any	director	may	attend	a	meeting	of	the	Executive	by	teleconference,	videoconference	and	
other	electronic	means	as	permit	all	persons	participating	in	the	meeting	to	communicate	
adequately	with	each	other	during	the	meeting,	and	a	director	participating	in	the	meeting	
by	those	means	is	deemed	to	be	present	at	the	meeting.		Any	such	consent	shall	be	effective	
whether	given	before	or	after	the	meeting	to	which	it	relates	and	may	be	given	with	respect	
to	all	meetings	of	the	Executive	while	a	director	holds	office.	

Voting	while	participating	electronically		

6.9 A	director	participating	in	the	meeting	by	any	of	the	means	set	out	in	section	6.8	may	vote,	
and	that	vote	may	be	held	by	teleconference,	videoconference	or	any	other	electronic	
means	that	the	Society	has	made	available	for	that	purpose.	

Seconding	motions	

6.10 A	resolution	proposed	at	a	meeting	of	the	Executive	must	be	seconded	prior	to	being	voted	
on.	

Proceedings	valid	despite	omission	to	give	notice		

6.11 The	accidental	omission	to	give	notice	of	an	Executive	meeting	to	a	director,	or	the	non-
receipt	of	a	notice	by	a	director,	does	not	invalidate	proceedings	at	the	meeting.			

Quorum	of	directors		

6.12 The	quorum	for	the	transaction	of	business	at	an	Executive	meeting	is	5	directors.	
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Voting	

6.13 Subject	to	these	Bylaws,	any	question	arising	at	any	meeting	of	the	Executive	shall	be	
decided	by	a	majority	of	votes.		Each	director	(including	for	greater	certainty,	the	chair)	is	
entitled	to	exercise	one	vote.		All	votes	at	any	such	meeting	shall	be	taken	by	show	of	hands	
in	the	usual	manner	of	assent	or	dissent.		Whenever	a	vote	by	show	of	hands	shall	be	taken	
upon	a	question,	a	declaration	by	the	chair	that	a	resolution	has	been	carried	and	an	entry	
to	that	effect	in	the	minutes	shall	be	admissible	in	evidence	as	prima	facie	proof	of	the	fact	
without	proof	of	the	number	or	proportion	of	the	votes	recorded	in	favour	of	or	against	
such	resolution,	and	the	result	of	the	vote	so	taken	shall	be	the	decision	of	the	Executive	
upon	the	said	question.	

Chair	of	Executive	meetings	

6.14 The	following	individual	is	entitled	to	preside	as	the	chair	of	an	Executive	meeting:	

(a) the	President;	

(b) the	First	Vice-President,	if	the	President	is	unable	to	preside	as	the	chair;	or	

(c) the	Second	Vice-President,	if	the	President	and	the	First	Vice-President	is	unable	to	
preside	as	the	chair.	

6.15 If	none	of	the	President,	First	Vice-President	or	Second	Vice-President	is	present	within	15	
minutes	of	the	time	fixed	for	the	holding	of	the	meeting,	the	directors	present	and	entitled	
to	vote	shall	choose	one	of	the	directors	to	chair	the	meeting.	

Casting	Vote	

6.16 In	the	case	of	an	equality	of	votes	at	any	Executive	meeting,	the	chair	shall	not	have	a	
second	or	casting	vote	and	the	question	shall	be	deemed	to	be	decided	in	the	negative.	

Persons	entitled	to	be	present	

6.17 The	only	persons	entitled	to	attend	meetings	of	the	Executive	shall	be	the	directors	and	the	
Secretary.		Any	other	person	may	be	admitted	only	on	the	invitation	of	the	chair	of	the	
meeting	or	with	the	consent	of	the	meeting.		Only	the	directors	and	the	Secretary	will	have	
the	right	to	speak	at	such	meetings	although	others	duly	present	at	such	meetings	shall	be	
allowed	to	speak	with	the	consent	of	the	meeting.	

Resolution	in	Writing	

6.18 A	resolution	consented	to	in	writing	by	all	the	directors	shall	be	as	valid	and	effectual	as	if	it	
had	been	passed	at	a	meeting	of	the	Executive	duly	convened	and	held.		Such	resolution	
may	be	in	one	or	more	counterparts,	each	signed	by	one	or	more	directors,	which	together	
shall	be	deemed	to	constitute	one	instrument.	
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Part	7 	–	EXECUTIVE	POSITIONS		

Role	of	President		

7.1 The	President	is	the	chair	of	the	Executive	and	is	responsible	for	supervising	the	other	
directors	in	the	execution	of	their	duties.		The	President	shall	also	perform	such	other	duties	
as	determined	by	the	Executive	from	time	to	time.	

Role	of	First	Vice-President		

7.2 The	First	Vice-President	is	the	vice-chair	of	the	Executive	and	is	responsible	for	carrying	out	
the	duties	of	the	president	if	the	President	is	unable	to	act.		The	First	Vice-President	shall	
also	perform	such	other	duties	as	determined	by	the	Executive	from	time	to	time.	

Role	of	Second	Vice-President		

7.3 The	Second	Vice-President	is	responsible	for	carrying	out	the	duties	of	the	First	Vice-
President	if	the	First	Vice-President	is	unable	to	act.		The	Second	Vice-President	shall	also	
perform	such	other	duties	as	determined	by	the	Executive	from	time	to	time.	

	

Role	of	secretary		

7.4 The	secretary	is	responsible	for	doing,	or	making	the	necessary	arrangements	for,	the	
following:	

(a) issuing	notices	of	general	meetings	and	Executive	meetings;		

(b) taking	minutes	of	general	meetings	and	Executive	meetings;		

(c) keeping	the	records	of	the	Society	in	accordance	with	the	Act;		

(d) conducting	the	correspondence	of	the	Executive;		

(e) filing	the	annual	report	of	the	Society	and	making	any	other	filings	with	the	registrar	
under	the	Act.	

The	secretary	shall	also	perform	such	other	duties	as	determined	by	the	Executive	from	time	
to	time.	

Absence	of	secretary	from	meeting		

7.5 In	the	absence	of	the	secretary	from	a	meeting,	the	Executive	must	appoint	another	
individual	to	act	as	secretary	at	the	meeting.	
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Role	of	treasurer		

7.6 The	treasurer	is	responsible	for	doing,	or	making	the	necessary	arrangements	for,	the	
following:	

(a) receiving	and	banking	monies	collected	from	the	Members	or	other	sources;	

(b) keeping	accounting	records	in	respect	of	the	Society’s	financial	transactions;	

(c) preparing	the	Society’s	financial	statements;		

(d) making	the	Society’s	filings	respecting	taxes.			

The	treasurer	shall	also	perform	such	other	duties	as	determined	by	the	Executive	from	time	
to	time.	

Secretary/Treasurer	may	be	an	employee	

7.7 The	Society	may	hire	an	employee	or	contractor	to	act	as	Secretary	and/or	Treasurer	and	
such	employee	may	be	hired	on	terms	and	conditions	as	the	Executive	deems	fit.	

Part	8 –	REMUNERATION	OF	DIRECTORS		

Remuneration	of	directors		

8.1 The	directors	shall	receive	no	remuneration	for	acting	as	directors	or	officers,	but	shall	be	
entitled	to	receive	a	reasonable	per	diem	in	accordance	with	the	Executive	Policies	and	to	
be	paid	their	reasonable	expenses	properly	incurred	in	the	performance	of	their	duties,	
including	their	travel	and	other	expenses	properly	incurred	by	them,	for	their	attending	
meetings	of	the	Executive	or	of	any	committee	of	the	Society	which	they	serve	on,	or	any	
other	meeting	which	has	been	approved	in	advance	by	the	Executive	as		being	properly	
incurred	by	them	in	connection	with	carrying	out	the	activities	of	the	Society.		No	director	
shall	receive	compensation	for	attendance	at	the	AGM.	

Part	9 -		COMMITTEES	

Constitute	Committees	

9.1 The	Executive	may	delegate	any,	but	not	all,	of	their	powers	to	committees	consisting	
of	such	persons	as	they	think	fit,	provided	each	committee	shall	have	at	least	one	
Director	serving	on	it.			

Committee	Rules	and	Procedures	

9.2 A	committee	so	formed	shall	conform	to	any	rules	that	from	time	to	time	may	be	
imposed	on	it	by	the	Executive	and	shall	report	any	act	or	thing	done	in	exercise	of	the	
delegated	powers	to	the	next	meeting	of	the	Executive	held	after	the	act	or	thing	has	
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been	done.		Any	member	of	any	such	committee	may	be	removed	from	a	committee	at	any	
time	at	the	discretion	of	the	Executive.			

9.3 Membership	in	each	committee	shall	not	be	restricted	to	persons	who	are	directors	unless	
directed	by	the	Executive.	

9.4 The	members	of	a	committee	may	meet	and	adjourn	as	they	think	proper.	

Disbanding	of	Committees	

9.5 The	Executive	shall	have	the	power	to	disband	any	committee	which	it	creates.	

Committee	Chair	

9.6 A	committee	shall	elect	a	Chair	of	its	meeting	but	if	no	Chair	is	elected	or	at	any	meeting	the	
Chair	is	not	present	within	thirty	(30)	minutes	after	the	time	appointed	for	holding	the	
meeting,	the	directors	present	who	are	members	of	the	committee	shall	choose	one	of	their	
number	to	be	Chair	of	the	meeting.	

Part	10 PROTECTION	OF	DIRECTORS	AND	OFFICERS	

Limitation	of	Liability		

10.1 Every	director	and	officer	in	exercising	his	or	her	powers	and	discharging	his	or	her	duties	
shall	act	honestly	and	in	good	faith	with	a	view	to	the	best	interests	of	the	Society	and	
exercise	the	care,	diligence	and	skill	that	a	reasonably	prudent	person	would	exercise	in	
comparable	circumstances.		Subject	thereto,	no	director	or	officer	shall	be	liable	for	the	
acts,	receipts,	neglects	or	defaults	of	any	other	director	or	officer	or	other	individual	acting	
in	a	similar	capacity,	or	for	joining	in	any	receipt	or	other	act	for	conformity,	or	for	any	loss,	
damage	or	expense	to	the	Society	arising	from	the	insufficiency	or	deficiency	of	title	to	any	
property	acquired	by	or	on	behalf	of	the	Society,	or	for	the	insufficiency	or	deficiency	of	any	
security	in	or	upon	which	any	of	the	moneys	of	the	Society	are	invested,	or	for	any	loss,	
damage	or	expense	arising	from	the	bankruptcy,	insolvency,	act	or	omission	of	any	person,	
firm	or	corporation	with	whom	or	which	any	monies,	securities	or	other	property	of	the	
Society	are	lodged	or	deposited,	or	for	any	loss,	damage	or	expense	occasioned	by	any	error	
of	judgment	or	oversight	on	such	director's,	officer's	or	other	individual's	part,	or	for	any	
other	loss,	damage	or	expense	related	to	the	performance	or	non-performance	of	the	duties	
of	his	or	her	respective	office	or	in	relation	thereto	unless	the	same	shall	happen	by	or	
through	his	or	her	own	wrongful	and	wilful	act	or	through	his	or	her	own	wrongful	or	wilful	
neglect	or	default.	

Indemnity	

10.2 Subject	to	the	limitations	contained	in	the	Act,	but	without	limiting	the	right	of	the	Society	
to	indemnify	any	individual	under	the	Act	or	otherwise	to	the	full	extent	permitted	by	law,	
the	Society	shall,	from	time	to	time	and	at	all	times,	indemnify	each	director	or	officer	or	
former	director	or	officer	(and	each	such	director's,	officer's	or	other	individual's	respective	
heirs,	executors,	administrators,	or	other	legal	personal	representatives	and	his	or	her	
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estate	and	effects),	or	another	individual	who	acts	or	acted	at	the	Society’s	request	as	a	
director	or	an	officer	or	in	a	similar	capacity	of	another	entity),	against	all	costs,	charges	and	
expenses,	including	an	amount	paid	to	settle	an	action	or	satisfy	a	judgment,	reasonably	
incurred	by	the	individual	in	respect	of	any	civil,	criminal,	administrative,	investigative	or	
other	proceeding	in	which	the	individual	is	involved	because	of	that	association	with	the	
Society	or	other	entity	provided	that	the	individual	to	be	indemnified:	

(a) acted	honestly	and	in	good	faith	with	a	view	to	the	best	interests	of	the	Society	or,	
as	the	case	may	be,	to	the	best	interests	of	the	other	entity	for	which	the	individual	
acted	as	director	or	officer	or	in	a	similar	capacity	at	the	Society’s	request;	and	

(b) in	the	case	of	a	criminal	or	administrative	action	or	proceeding	that	is	enforced	by	a	
monetary	penalty,	had	reasonable	grounds	for	believing	that	the	individual's	
conduct	was	lawful.	

Advance	of	costs	

10.3 The	Society	may	advance	money	to	a	director,	an	officer	or	other	individual	for	the	costs,	
charges	and	expenses	relating	to	a	proceeding	referred	to	in	Section	10.2.		The	individual	
shall	repay	the	money	if	the	individual	does	not	fulfil	the	conditions	of	Sections	10.2(a)	and	
(b).	

Insurance	

10.4 The	Society	may	purchase	and	maintain	insurance	for	the	benefit	of	an	individual	referred	to	
in	Section	10.2	against	any	liability	incurred	by	the	individual	in	the	individual's	capacity	as	a	
director	or	an	officer,	or	in	the	individual's	capacity	as	a	director	or	an	officer,	or	in	a	similar	
capacity,	of	another	entity,	if	the	individual	acts	or	acted	in	that	capacity	at	the	Society’s	
request.	

Indemnities	not	limiting	

10.5 The	provisions	of	this	article	10	shall	be	in	addition	to	and	not	in	substitution	for	or	
limitation	of	any	rights,	immunities	and	protections	to	which	an	individual	is	otherwise	
entitled.	

Part	11 DISCLOSURE	OF	INTEREST	

Disclosure	of	Interest	

11.1 Without	limiting	the	disclosure	of	interest	provisions	in	the	Act,	a	director	or	an	officer	shall	
fully	and	promptly	disclose	to	the	Executive,	in	writing	or	by	requesting	to	have	it	entered	
into	the	minutes	of	meetings	of	the	Executive	or	of	committees,	the	nature	and	extent	of	
any	direct	or	indirect	material	interest	in:	

(a) a	contract	or	transaction,	whether	made	or	proposed,	of	the	Society;	or	

737373



	 19	

(b) a	matter	that	is	or	is	to	be	the	subject	of	consideration	by	the	Executive,	if	that	
interest	could	result	in	the	creation	of	a	duty	or	interest	that	materially	conflicts	
with	that	director's	duty	or	interest	as	a	director	of	the	Society.	

Time	of	Disclosure	for	Director	

11.2 The	disclosure	required	by	a	director	pursuant	to	section	11.1	shall	be	made	promptly,	but	
in	any	event	shall	be	no	later	than:	

(a) at	the	meeting	at	which	the	proposed	contract	or	transaction	is	first	considered;	

(b) if	the	director	was	not,	at	the	time	of	the	meeting	referred	to	in	Section	11.2(a),	
interested	in	the	proposed	contract	or	transaction,	at	the	first	meeting	after	the	
director	becomes	so	interested;	

(c) if	the	director	becomes	interested	after	the	contract	or	transaction	is	made,	at	the	
first	meeting	after	the	director	becomes	so	interested;	or	

(d) if	an	individual	who	is	interested	in	the	contract	or	transaction	later	becomes	a	
director,	at	the	first	meeting	after	the	individual	becomes	a	director.	

Time	of	Disclosure	for	Officer	

11.3 The	disclosure	required	by	an	officer	who	is	not	a	director	pursuant	to	section	11	.1	shall	be	
made	promptly,	but	in	any	event	shall	be	no	later	than:	

(a) immediately	after	the	officer	becomes	aware	that	the	contract,	transaction,	
proposed	contract	or	proposed	transaction	is	to	be	considered	or	has	been	
considered	at	a	meeting;	

(b) if	the	officer	becomes	interested	after	the	contract	or	transaction	is	made,	
immediately	after	the	officer	becomes	so	interested;	or	

(c) if	an	individual	who	is	interested	in	the	contract	or	transaction	later	becomes	an	
officer,	immediately	after	the	individual	becomes	an	officer.	

Voting	

11.4 A	director	or	officer	who	is	required	to	make	a	disclosure	under	Section	11	.1	shall:	

(a) leave	the	Executive		meeting:	

(i) when	the	contract,	transaction	or	matter	is	being	discussed,	unless	
requested	to	remain	to	provide	information;	and	

(ii) in	the	case	of	a	director,	when	the	remaining	directors	vote	on	the	contract,	
transaction	or	matter;	and	

(b) refrain	from	any	action	intended	to	influence	the	discussion	or	vote.	
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11.5 Section	11.4	shall	not	apply	where	the	contract,	transaction	or	matter:	

(a) is	for	indemnity	or	insurance	pursuant	to	section	10.4;	or	

(b) related	to	the	purchase	or	maintenance	of	directors	and	officers	liability	insurance;		

Continuing	disclosure	

11.6 For	the	purposes	of	this	Section,	a	general	notice	to	the	Executive	declaring	that	a	director	
or	an	officer	is	to	be	regarded	as	interested,	for	any	of	the	following	reasons,	in	a	contract	or	
transaction	made	with	a	party,	is	a	sufficient	declaration	of	interest	in	relation	to	the	
contract	or	transaction:	

(a) the	director	or	officer	is	a	director	or	an	officer,	or	acting	in	a	similar	capacity,	of	a	
party	referred	to	in	subsection	(b)	or	(	c);	

(b) the	director	or	officer	has	a	material	interest	in	the	party;	or	

(c) there	has	been	a	material	change	in	the	nature	of	the	director's	or	the	officer's	
interest	in	the	party.	

Access	to	Disclosures		

11.7 The	Members	may	examine	the	portions	of	any	minutes	of	meetings	of	Executive	or	any	
minutes	of	meetings	of	committees	that	contain	disclosures	contemplated	by	Section	11.1,	
and	of	any	other	documents	that	contain	those	disclosures,	during	the	Society’s	usual	
business	hours.	

Avoidance	Standards	

11.8 A	contract	or	transaction	for	which	disclosure	is	required	under	section	11.1	is	not	invalid,	
and	a	director	or	officer	is	not	accountable	to	the	Society	or	its	Members	for	any	profit	
realized	from	the	contract	or	transaction,	because	of	the	director's	or	officer's	interest	in	the	
contract	or	transaction	or	because	the	director	was	present	or	was	counted	to	determine	
whether	a	quorum	existed	at	the	meeting	of	the	Executive	or	that	considered	the	contract	
or	transaction,	if:	

(a) disclosure	of	the	interest	was	made	in	accordance	with	section	11.1;	

(b) the	Executive	approved	the	contract	or	transaction;	and		

(c) the	contract	or	transaction	was	reasonable	and	fair	to	the	Society	when	it	was	
approved.	
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Part	12 EXECUTION	OF	DOCUMENTS,	BANKING	AND	BORROWING	

Signatories	

12.1 Except	for	documents	executed	in	the	usual	and	ordinary	course	of	the	Society’s	business,	
which	may	be	signed	by	the	Secretary	or	President,	any	contract	or	other	record	on	behalf	
of	the	Society	may	be	signed	by	any	individual(s)	appointed	by	the	Executive	to	sign	a	
specific	document	or	specific	type	of	document	or	generally	on	behalf	of	the	Society.	Any	
document	so	signed	may,	but	need	not,	have	the	Society’s	seal	applied,	if	there	is	one.	

	

Facsimile	Signatures	

12.2 The	signatures	of	any	person	authorized	to	sign	on	behalf	of	the	Society,	may,	if	specifically	
authorized	by	resolution	of	the	Executive,	be	written,	printed,	stamped,	engraved,	
lithographed	or	otherwise	mechanically	reproduced.		Anything	so	signed	shall	be	as	valid	as	
if	it	had	been	signed	manually,	even	if	that	person	has	ceased	to	hold	office	when	anything	
so	signed	is	issued	or	delivered,	until	revoked	by	resolution	of	the	Executive.	

Banking	

12.3 The	banking	business	of	the	Society	shall	be	transacted	with	such	banks,	trust	companies	or	
other	firms	or	corporations	carrying	on	a	banking	business	in	Canada,	or	elsewhere	as	may	
from	time	to	time	be	designated	by	or	under	the	authority	of	the	Executive.		Such	banking	
business	or	any	part	thereof	shall	be	transacted	under	such	agreements,	instructions	and	
delegations	of	power	as	the	Executive	may,	from	time	to	time,	prescribe	or	authorize.	

Borrowing	

12.4 The	Executive	may	not	do	any	of	the	following	unless	approved	by	special	resolution	of	the	
Members:	

(a) borrow	money	on	the	credit	of	the	Society;	

(b) issue,	reissue,	sell,	pledge	or	hypothecate	debt	obligations	of	the	Society;	

(c) give	a	guarantee	on	behalf	of	the	Society	to	secure	performance	of	an	obligation	of	
any	person;	or	

(d) mortgage,	hypothecate,	pledge	or	otherwise	create	a	security	interest	in	all	or	any	
property	of	the	Society,	owned	or	subsequently	acquired,	to	secure	any	obligation	
of	the	Society.	

Standard	of	Care	

12.5 In	investing	the	funds	of	the	Society,	the	Executive	may	make	any	investments	in	which	a	
prudent	investor	might	invest.		Subject	to	the	provisions	of	the	Act,	the	Executive	shall	not	
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be	liable	for	any	loss	that	may	result	in	connection	with	any	such	investments	made	by	the	
Executive.	

Executive	Delegation	

12.6 From	time	to	time	the	Executive	may	authorize	any	director,	officer	or	committee,	to	make	
arrangements	with	reference	to	the	monies	borrowed	or	to	be	borrowed	as	aforesaid	and	
as	to	the	terms	and	conditions	of	the	loan	thereof,	and	as	to	the	security	to	be	given	
therefor,	with	power	to	vary	or	modify	such	arrangements,	terms	and	conditions	and	to	give	
such	additional	security	for	any	monies	borrowed	or	remaining	due	by	the	Society	as	the	
Executive	may	authorize,	and	generally	to	manage,	transact	and	settle	the	borrowing	of	
money	by	the	Society.	

Part	13 NOTICE	

Procedure	for	Sending	Notices	

13.1 Any	notice	(which	term	includes	any	communication	or	document)	to	be	given	sent,	
delivered	or	served	pursuant	to	the	Act,	these	Bylaws	or	otherwise,	to	a	Member	or	director	
shall	be	sufficiently	given	if	sent	to	the	principal	address	of	the	applicable	person	as	last	
shown	in	the	Society’s	records.		A	notice	so	delivered	shall	be	deemed	to	have	been	
received	when	it	is	delivered.		A	notice	so	mailed	shall	be	deemed	to	have	been	received	on	
the	fifth	day	after	mailing	(excluding	each	day	during	which	there	exists	any	general	
interruption	of	postal	services	due	to	strike,	lockout	or	other	cause).		A	notice	sent	by	means	
of	electronic,	transmitted	or	recorded	communication	shall	be	deemed	to	have	been	
received	when	so	sent.		The	president	may	change	or	cause	to	be	changed	the	recorded	
address	of	any	Member	or	director	in	accordance	with	the	information	believed	by	him	or	
her	to	be	reliable.	

Undelivered	Notices	

13.2 If	any	notice	given	to	a	Member	pursuant	to	Section	13.1	is	returned	on	two	consecutive	
occasions	because	such	Member	cannot	be	found,	the	Society	shall	not	be	required	to	give	
any	further	notice	to	such	Member	until	such	Member	informs	the	Society	in	writing	of	such	
member's	new	address.	

Computation	of	Time	

13.3 In	computing	the	date	when	notice	must	be	given	under	any	provision	requiring	a	specified	
number	of	days'	notice	of	any	meeting	or	other	event,	the	date	of	giving	the	notice	shall	be	
excluded	and	the	day	of	the	meeting	or	other	event	shall	be	included.	

Certification	re:	Delivery	

13.4 The	statutory	declaration	of	the	Secretary	or	the	President	or	of	any	other	person	
authorized	to	give	notice	of	a	meeting	that	notice	has	been	given	pursuant	to	these	Bylaws	
shall	be	sufficient	and	conclusive	evidence	of	the	giving	of	such	notice.	
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Part	14 RULES AND PROCEDURES 

14.1 The	proceedings	of	the	annual	general	meeting	must	be	governed	by	the	Society’s	Rules	and	
Procedures	for	Handling	Resolutions	and,	where	not	in	conflict	with	these,	the	last	edition	of	
Roberts	Rules	of	Order	applies.	
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Association of Vancouver
Island and Coastal Communities, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at December 31, 2017, the statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities

Page 2

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities as at 
December 31, 2017, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 
organizations.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the 
accounting policies applied by Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal 
Communities in preparing and presenting the financial statements in accordance with 
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations have been applied on a 
basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Victoria, Canada
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Statement of Financial Position

 
December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017 2016  

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 249,779 $ 219,346
Prepaid expenses 7,700 5,000
Accounts receivable 1,170 1,091

$ 258,649 $ 225,437

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 25,773 $ 7,036
Deferred contributions (note 3) 57,390 52,875

83,163 59,911

Net assets:
Unrestricted 175,486 165,526

Contractual commitments (note 4)

$ 258,649 $ 225,437

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

  Director   Director

1
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

 
Year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017 2016

Revenue:
Annual meeting - sponsorships $ 52,400 $ 58,950
Annual meeting - registration 71,443 61,853
Association dues 83,940 79,144
Interest 2,444 1,929
Other 8,173 684

218,400 202,560

Expenses:
Annual meeting 95,804 87,705
Communication and staff travel 1,633 1,258
Executive meetings 9,575 8,710
Other meetings 9,347 5,425
Postage, office and miscellaneous 6,405 677
Professional fees 5,350 5,250
Union of BC Municipalities contract fees 78,154 72,180
Consulting fees 2,172 9,158

208,440 190,363

Excess of revenue over expenses 9,960 12,197

Net assets, beginning of year 165,526 153,329

Net assets, end of year $ 175,486 $ 165,526

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017 2016

Cash provided by (used in):

Operations:
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 9,960 $ 12,197
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:

Increase in prepaid expenses (2,700) (5,000)
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (79) 260
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 18,737 (9,416)
Increase in deferred contributions 4,515 8,210

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 30,433 6,251

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 219,346 213,095

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 249,779 $ 219,346

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended December 31, 2017

Nature of operations:

Association of Vancouver Island and Coastal Communities (the "Association") is incorporated under
the Society Act (British Columbia) and is exempt from the requirement to pay income taxes.  Its
purpose is to promote autonomy within local government and to advance the principles of local
government. The Association represents the various municipalities and regional districts of
Vancouver Island, Powell River and the Sunshine and Central Coasts. On November 28, 2016, the
new Societies Act (British Columbia) became effective. The Society has until November 28, 2018 to
continue under the new act.

1. Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards
for Not-For-Profit Organizations ("ASNPO") in Part III of the CPA Canada Handbook.  The
Association's significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Basis of presentation:

These financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and
changes in net assets of the Association and, as such, do not include all the assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses of the members of the Association.

There is no provision in the accounts for income taxes as the activities of the Association
are conducted on a not-for-profit basis.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and highly liquid investments consisting of
term deposits with original maturities at the date of purchase of three months or less.

(c) Revenue recognition:

The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

Annual meeting sponsorships, registration and exhibit revenues are recognized as
revenue when the conference takes place.

Association dues are recognized as revenue in the year they are earned and collection is
reasonably assured.

4
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended December 31, 2017

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d) Contributed materials and services:

Due to the difficulty in determining fair value, contributed materials and services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

(e) Financial instruments:

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition and are subsequently
recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to carry the
instruments at fair value. The Association has not elected to carry any such financial
instruments at fair value.

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal
year if there are indicators of impairment.

(f) Capital assets:

In accordance with the ASNPO Handbook section 4431, Tangible Capital Assets held by
Not-for-profit Organizations, the Association has met the criteria to be considered a small
organization and as such has not capitalized any expenditures. Capital assets owned by
the Association but which have not been capitalized under this accounting policy include
computer hardware.

(g) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ASNPO requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.  Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

2. Cash and cash equivalents:

2017 2016

Cash $ 49,198 $ 20,557
MFA Money Market Funds 200,581 198,789

$ 249,779 $ 219,346

5
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ASSOCIATION OF VANCOUVER ISLAND AND
COASTAL COMMUNITIES
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

 
Year ended December 31, 2017

3. Deferred contributions:

Deferred contributions include $44,665 (2016 - $44,665) of provincial grants restricted for the
facilitation of the activities of the Treaty Advisory Committee.

Also included in deferred contributions is $12,725 (2016 - $8,210) in contributions restricted for
the activities of the Special Committee on Solid Waste Management. During 2017, $11,790 was
collected and restricted for the work of the Special Committee on Solid Waste Management and
$7,275 was recognized as revenue for costs incurred by the Committee. This revenue has been
included in the "Other" revenue line.

4. Contractual commitments:

The Association has a contract with the Union of British Columbia Municipalities for
administrative, office and various support services and has committed to pay $72,180 in 2018 in
respect of this contract by way of quarterly payments.  The contract term ends on December
31, 2020. The amounts are subject to adjustment each January.

6
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March 16, 2018 

 

Dear North Coast District Board, 

 

Please allow me to explain the reason for the proposal to rezone lot 594 from R1 to R2 (2 Acre). 

 

My objective is to sell two pieces of land: 

A) Provide a place for my tenant/renter to acquire the property she has lived on and built a life on. 

 (home gardens, outbuildings, ect.) 

B) To provide income for payoff  of debt to heirs other than clear cut logging the whole property. 

 

I realize the concern of the board with granting rezoning is the potential of subdividing the whole property 

into 2 acre lots thus changing the OCP.  However the layout of the Lot 594 is such that a subdivision of 2 

area lots throughout is not only not my desire but completely unfeasible. 

 

Both lots that I desire to sell in rezoned two area increments are accessible by public road which makes 

them easy for the buyer to access and develop. No further roads or bridges are necessary where as lawn hill 

creek is a natural boarder that divides my property.  This is of significant importance.  The cost of  a 

bridge is very prohibitive.  A rough estimate of a cost for a bridge is $80 000.00 - $100 000.00 not 

including road costs. 

 

The other reason a two acre subdivision is not feasible is because the only other access to my property is 

from the existing driveway which leads to a very scenic meadow and two cabins that sit on top of it.  It is 

also for this reason that I want to sell the two pieces in 2 Acre rather then 4 acre sizes because of the scenic 

layout of my property 4 acre lots puts the lots into my existing meadow which breaks up the beauty and the 

natural layout. 

 

Finally as stated before the tenant is only physically able to finance and maintain a smaller size lot. 

 

If it please the board I will be willing to change the remaining property to R1 to ensure that the property 

stays rural.  Also if it pleases the board I would like to bring pictures and costs estimates for the bridge to 

the meeting as an attachment to submit to the next meeting. 

 

Thank you for your time in considering this proposal. 

 

Sincerely, 

Clint Murdaugh 

LATE ITEM 7.13
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Staff Report 

 
Date:  March 23rd, 2018 

To:  D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:  D. Fish, Corporate Officer 

Subject: Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer League Service Provider Agreement (MIABC) 

Recommendations: 

 

THAT the staff report entitled “Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer League Service Provider 

Agreement (MIABC)” be received; 

AND THAT the Board of the North Coast Regional District agrees to provide liability 

insurance to the Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer League through the Municipal Insurance 

Association of B.C.’s Associate Member Program; 

AND FURTHER THAT the Board authorize staff to sign and enter into a service provider 

agreement with the Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer League for the provision of liability 

insurance through the North Coast Regional District’s liability insurance held with the 

Municipal Insurance Association of B.C. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Haida Gwaii Regional Recreation Commission (HGR) was created to build and support island-wide 

recreation and leisure programming, with the goal being to build healthy individuals, families and 

communities on Haida Gwaii. HGR offers support for programs in varying degrees of capacity, which 

includes the operation of registered HGR programs, coordination and support for drop-in sports 

programs, and participation and support for community events and programs across Haida Gwaii. 

 

The Municipal Insurance Association of B.C. (MIABC) provides stable liability insurance to all local 

governments and, through its associate member program, local government service providers throughout 

B.C. 
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DISCUSSION: 

The Haida Gwaii Youth Soccer Association (HGYSA) is a non-profit organization dedicated to providing 

recreational soccer to youth (ages 5-18) on Haida Gwaii. The HGYSA season begins in March and runs 

until June, with practices being held in communities across island, and games being held in Tlell. 

 

HGR approached the HGYSA in early 2017 as part of a project to bring a soccer clinic to Haida Gwaii. At 

that time, HGYSA inquired as to whether or not there was a partnership opportunity between 

organizations that would allow for soccer registration through the HGR website. In keeping with the 

supporting role HGR plays to recreational groups on island, it was identified that cost savings could be 

realized by the HGYSA by providing programming on behalf of the NCRD and accessing liability 

insurance through the MIABC’s associate member program. 

 

Beginning in 2015, liability insurance through MIABC could be extended to individuals, groups and 

associations that provide services for, or on behalf of its members, upon request of an MIABC member, up 

to a limit of $5 million. These individuals, groups and associations must be sponsored by a member in 

order to qualify for “associate member” status. Once accepted as an associate member, these parties are 

entitled to full coverage under the liability protection agreement, but only for services provided for, or on 

behalf of, the sponsoring member. 

 

In order to for the HGYSA to qualify as an associate member, the following conditions must be met: 

 

 The HGYSA is sponsored by the NCRD; 

 The NCRD has a written agreement for the provision of services with the HGYSA; 

 The services provided are services to the community provided for or on behalf of the NCRD; 

 The Service Provider Agreement has been approved by the NCRD’s board by resolutions or bylaw 

(Attachment A); and 

 The MIABC has received full payment of a premium from, or on behalf of, the HGYSA. 

 

It should be noted that the NCRD’s deductible will apply to claims brought against the HGYSA and the 

NCRD will be responsible for the payment of any costs incurred below the deductible. Additionally, all 

claims brought against the HGYSA will form part of the NCRD’s claims history. As currently structure 

through the Service Provider Agreement, HGYSA shall be responsible for any and all payment of premium 

and deductible amounts that arise. 

 
OPTIONS: 

1. Extend liability insurance to the HGYSA through MIABC’s associate member program, with 

HGYSA responsible for all premium and deductible charges that may arise; 

2. Extend liability insurance to the HGYSA through MIABC’s associate member program, with the 

NCRD responsible for all premium and deductible charges that may arise; or 

3. Do not extend liability insurance to the HGYSA through MIABC’s associate member program. 
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RECOMMENDATION: 

In keeping with the supporting role HGR plays to recreation clubs or organizations on Haida Gwaii, Staff 

is recommending that the Board approve the Service Provider Agreement, as attached, between the NCRD 

and the HGYSA. Under this agreement, the HGYSA is responsible for any and all premium and deductible 

payments that may arise. 
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SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

This Service Provider Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this _____ day of  

_____________________, ____________ by and in between ___________________________________  

(the “Local Government”) and ____________________________________ (the “Service Provider”). 

The Service Provider agrees to provide the following services for or on behalf of the Local Government: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________. 

 The term of the Agreement is from the _____ day of _____________________, ____________ and

the _____ day of _____________________, ____________.

 The term of the Agreement is perpetual commencing the _____ day of _____________________,

____________.

While providing the agreed service, the Service Provider agrees to comply with: all applicable 
laws, rules and regulations; the practices, procedures and policies of the Local Government; and any 
special instructions given to the Service Provider by representative(s) of the Local Government. 

The Local Government agrees to obtain commercial general liability insurance coverage from the 
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (MIABC) naming the Service Provider as an 
Additional Named Insured entitled to full coverage in the amount of $5,000,000 with respect to third 
party liability claims arising from the provision of the agreed service.  The Service Provider agrees to 
carry its own statutory worker’s compensation insurance and automobile liability insurance, if 
appropriate. 

The Service Provider agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Local Government, its agents, 
servants, employees, trustees, officers and representatives from any liability, loss or damage which the 
Local Government may suffer as a result of any claims, demands, costs, actions, causes of actions, or 
judgments, including legal fees, asserted against or incurred by the Local Government arising out of, 
during, or as a result of the provision of services outlined in the Agreement except such liability, loss, or 
damage which is the result of, or arising out of, the sole negligence of the Local Government or that is 
covered by the MIABC liability insurance policy. 

Attachment A
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 The Local Government agrees to be responsible for any and all deductible amounts including any
claim expenses incurred and policy premium payments.

 The Service Provider agrees to be responsible for any and all deductible amounts including any claim
expenses incurred and policy premium payments.

The Local Government reserves the right to terminate this Agreement and the associated commercial 
general liability insurance coverage provided to the Service Provider by the MIABC at any time upon 
written notification to the Service Provider of the termination. 

ON BEHALF OF <LOCAL GOVERNMENT> ON BEHALF OF <SERVICE PROVIDER> 

Name: Name:
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Title: Title:
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Signature: Signature:
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Date: Date:
________________________________________ _______________________________________ 
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Staff Report 

 
Date:  March 23rd, 2018 

To:  D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:  D. Fish, Corporate Officer 

Subject: TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association Resolution Submission 

Recommendations: 

 

THAT the staff report entitled “TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association Resolution 

Submission” be received; 

AND THAT the Board of the North Coast Regional District submit the following resolution 

to the TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association to be considered at its 2018 Annual 

General Meeting: 

WHEREAS the quality of highway 16 road maintenance service provided by the Ministry of 

Transportation and Infrastructure has a significant impact on the safety of our highway; 

AND WHEREAS the provision of quality highway road maintenance services not only 

ensures safe conditions for those travelling highway 16 but also ensures that the maximum 

life span of our highway infrastructure can be realized; 

AND WHEREAS the Carwash Rock and Kasiks areas along highway 16 require additional 

consideration for increased maintenance for safety concerns; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 

ensure that contracted road maintenance provided fulfill their contractual obligations 

through enhanced monitoring and maintenance along highway 16, particularly at Carwash 

Rock and Kasiks. 

  

93

ITEM 8.2

9393



 

 

 

 
North Coast Regional District 

  
March 23, 2018 

   

 

2 

BACKGROUND: 

The TransCanada Yellowhead Highway Association (TCYHA) will hold its Annual General Meeting on 
April 6th, 2018 in Edmonton, AB. The TCYHA is engaged in advocacy for the development, maintenance 
and enhancement of the Yellowhead Highway. 
 
At its Regular meeting held February 23rd, 2018, the Board of the North Coast Regional District (NCRD) 
directed staff to prepare a resolution with respect to maintenance of highway 16 at Carwash Rock and 
Kasiks to be considered for submission to the TCYHA. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The following resolution was circulated to the Board for consideration with a deadline to receive comment 
or amendment by March 14th, 2018, to facilitate a submission prior to the TCYHA’s March 21st submission 
deadline: 
 

WHEREAS the quality of highway 16 road maintenance service provided by the 
Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure has a significant impact on the safety of 
our highway; 
 
AND WHEREAS the provision of quality highway road maintenance services not only 
ensures safe conditions for those travelling highway 16 but also ensures that the 
maximum life span of our highway infrastructure can be realized; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Carwash Rock and Kasiks areas along highway 16 require 
additional consideration for increased maintenance for safety concerns; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 
ensure that contracted road maintenance provided fulfill their contractual obligations 
through enhanced monitoring and maintenance along highway 16, particularly at 
Carwash Rock and Kasiks. 

 
Following the March 14th deadline, the resolution was submitted to the TCYHA for consideration at its 

upcoming annual general meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is recommending that the Board of the NCRD ratify the motion presented on Page 1 of this report. 
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Staff Report 

 
Date:  March 23rd, 2018 

To:  D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer 

From:  D. Fish, Corporate Officer 

Subject: April 20 – 21st, 2018 Travel to Port Clements 

Recommendations: 

THAT the staff report entitled “April 20 – 21st, 2018 Travel to Port Clements” be received 

for information. 

BACKGROUND: 

At its Regular meeting held January 26th, 2018, the Board of the North Coast Regional District (NCRD) 

adopted its 2018 Board meeting schedule. At that time, the Board resolved to hold the April 20th Regular 

Board meeting in Port Clements. The following report presents a rough timeline of events during Director 

travel.  

 
DISCUSSION: 

The following schedule has been compiled for Director convenience: 

Friday, April 20th  
11:30 AM Mainland Directors arrive at Ocean Pacific Air 
12:00 PM Mainland Directors depart Prince Rupert  
1:00 PM Mainland Directors arrive in Masset 
1:00 – 4:00 PM Travel from Masset to Tlell; additional time for leisure 
5:00 PM Board Dinner hosted at Haida House 
6:30 PM Travel to Port Clements 
7:00 PM NCRD Regular Board meeting 
TBD Directors return to Haida House for evening 
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Saturday, April 21st   
9:00 AM Breakfast served at Haida House 
10:00 AM – 1:15 PM Leisure time 
1:15 PM Travel to Port Clements  
2:00 PM Mainland Directors depart Port Clements  
 

As information comes in and scheduling is adjusted, Staff will note this and prepare a more detailed 

itinerary to Directors prior to scheduled travel in April. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is recommending that this report be received for information. Should Directors wish to schedule any 
additional events, please advise Staff so this information can be included in a completed itinerary in April. 
 
 

969696



 

 

 

 
North Coast Regional District 

  
March 23, 2018 

   

 

1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 
Date:  March 23, 2018  

To:  North Coast Regional District Board 

From:  D. Chapman, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: Results of the 2017 Intake for the Federal Gas Tax Fund – Strategic Priorities  

 

Recommendation: 

THAT the report titled “Results of the 2017 Intake for the Federal Gas Tax Fund – Strategic Priorities” be 

received. 

 

Purpose of the Report: 

This report summarizes the results announced as to the projects that received funding from the Federal 
Gas Tax Fund – Strategic Priorities. 
 

Background: 

In May of 2017, the North Coast Regional District (NCRD) Board authorized Staff to make an application 
to the Federal Gas Tax Fund – Strategic Priorities fund to complete the Regional Recycling Depot Asset 
Upgrade project for approximately $1.76 million. 
 
The results of the deliberations of all the projects were released on March 12, 2018 and the NCRD was not 
successful in obtaining the required funding for the Regional Recycling Depot Asset Upgrade. 
 
 
Discussion: 

Whenever the NCRD is not successful in a grant application, it is a good time to take a look and try to 
determine why the application was not successful.  There were not any preset parameters or priorities set 
out by the federal Gas Tax Fund, so it is necessary to place a funding request into the fund “blind”.   Staff 
does not believe that the Boards opposition to the proposed LNG plant on Digby Island was a factor in our 
unsuccessful funding request.   Based on our analysis, we were off the mark with what the selection 
committee thought the strategic priorities should be. 
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Based on the graph below, the top priorities are asset management plans, sewerage, water, 
parks/walkways/recreation, and bridge/ road renewals: 
 

 
 
 
While it appears that asset management plans was not particularly well supported, below is a graph that 
shows the number of applications that were funded in each of the categories in the graph above: 
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In examining the disbursal of the Federal Gas Tax Funds, it is important to keep in mind that not every 
local government made an application to the fund.  Below is a graph indicating the various regional 
districts to where funds were awarded.  Funds were either granted to the regional district or a 
municipality contained within the regional district. 
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The graph above simply condenses the previous graph into larger geographical areas.  Basically, the 
communities located on Vancouver Island and the Okanagan received approximately 55% of the funding 
while the rest of the communities in the province received the remaining 45%. 
 
Financial Considerations 

A report will be provided at the Board meeting scheduled for April 20, 2018 on our options to fund the 
needed repairs for the building. 

Conclusion: 

When making an application to the Federal Gas Tax – Strategic Priorities, the basic parameters or 
selection criteria are not known.  Staff has asked for the grading criteria used so we can gain a better 
understanding of how the selection decisions were made.  However, it is possible that the methodologies 
used in this last selection process could likely change for 2019 which is when the next intake will occur. 
 
There were some grants given in the $6 million range for recreation buildings and aquatic centers.  For 
the next intake, based on our observation that some organizations received multiple grants, that the 
NCRD place multiple grant requests in for the next intake.  One grant could be for a swimming pool for 
Haida Gwaii, the rebuilding of our recycling centre, and one for composting.   Developing the two new 
requests will take some time and we have two years to get that work done. 
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Bylaw No. 622, 2018 

A bylaw to adopt the Five-Year Financial Plan for the Years 2018 to 2022 

The Board of the North Coast Regional District, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 

 

1. Schedule “A” attached hereto and made part of this bylaw is hereby adopted as the Five-Year 

Financial Plan for the North Coast Regional District for the years 2018-2022, inclusive. 

 

2. This Bylaw shall be cited as the “North Coast Regional District Five-Year Financial Plan Years 

2018-2022 Bylaw No. 622, 2018”. 

 

 

 

Read a first time this __ day of ___________, 2018 

 

Read a second time this __ day of ___________, 2018 

 

Read a third time this __ day of ___________, 2018 

 

Adopted this __ day of ___________, 2018 

___________________ ___________________ 

Chair Officer 

 

I hereby certify that this is a true copy of the North Coast Regional District Bylaw No. ###, 2018. 
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 450,000      352,447 352,580  352,580  352,580  
Provincial Basic Grant 120,000      120,000 120,000  120,000  120,000  
Conditional Grant 13,000         
Unconditional Grant 30,000         26,200   26,200    26,200    26,200    
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments 8,640           7,000     7,000      7,000      7,000      
Other 331,270      
Transfer from Other Services 332,474 332,470  332,470  332,470  
Use of Prior Year Surplus 14,567         

Total Revenue 967,477      838,121 838,250  838,250  838,250  

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 967,477      838,121 838,250  838,250  838,250  
Debt Interest -              
Debt Principle -              
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 967,477      838,121 838,250  838,250  838,250  

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

General Government Administration

1

Schedule A
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 226,840   236,316   236,340   236,340   236,340   
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 19,000     13,000     13,000     13,000     13,000     
Sales of Services 62,980     65,717     65,730     65,730     65,730     
Sales of Materials 344,216   341,656   341,660   341,660   341,660   
Investments
Rental Income 21,680     21,680     21,680     21,680     21,680     
Other 1,500       6,250       7,250       7,250       7,250       
Transfer from Other Services
Use of Prior Year Surplus 98,970     

Total Revenue 775,186   684,619   685,660   685,660   685,660   

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 688,585   650,619   651,660   651,660   651,660   
Debt Interest 1,405       -           -           -           -           
Debt Principle 21,196     -           -           -           -           
Transfer to Reserves 64,000     34,000     34,000     34,000     34,000     

Total Operating Expenditures 775,186   684,619   685,660   685,660   685,660   

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Mainland Recycling
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 140,000      193,678     193,680    193,680   193,680   
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 4,600          4,600         4,600         4,600       4,600       
Sales of Services 795,500      793,684     793,750    793,750   793,750   
Sales of Materials 900             900            900            900          900          
Investments
Rental Income
Other 1,000          750            750            750          750          
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves 16,000        
Use of Prior Year Surplus 139,040      

Total Revenue 1,097,040   993,612     993,680    993,680   993,680   

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 993,072      942,962     943,030    943,030   943,030   
Debt Interest 11               2,150         2,150         2,150       2,150       
Debt Principle 4,027          21,500       21,500       21,500     21,500     
Transfer to Capital 16,000        -             -            -           -           
Transfer to Reserves 83,930        27,000       27,000       27,000     27,000     

Total Operating Expenditures 1,097,040   993,612     993,680    993,680   993,680   

Capital

Sources of Funding
Operations 16,000        -             -            -           .
Transfer from Reserves

Total Capital Funding 16,000        -             -            -           -           

Capital Purchases 16,000        -             -            -           -           

Unused Capital Funding -              -             -            -           -           

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Island Solid Waste
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 95,960     103,440   103,440   103,440   103,440   
Provincial Basic Grant 80,000     80,000     80,000     80,000     80,000     
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 3,600       2,600       2,600       2,600       2,600       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves -           
Use of Prior Year Surplus 86,020     

Total Revenue 265,580   186,040   186,040   186,040   186,040   

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 204,420   186,040   186,040   186,040   186,040   
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves 61,160     

Total Operating Expenditures 265,580   186,040   186,040   186,040   186,040   

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022
Electoral Area Administration
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 12,700     14,760     14,760     14,760     14,760     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 970          970          970          970          970          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves -           
Use of Prior Year Surplus 2,790       

Total Revenue 16,460     15,730     15,730     15,730     15,730     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 16,460     15,730     15,730     15,730     15,730     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 16,460     15,730     15,730     15,730     15,730     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018- 2022

Electoral Area Administration - Area E
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 200          200          200          200          200          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves -           20,800     20,800     20,800     20,800     
Use of Prior Year Surplus 13,000     

Total Revenue 18,200     26,000     26,000     26,000     26,000     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 18,200     26,000     26,000     26,000     26,000     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves -           

Total Operating Expenditures 18,200     26,000     26,000     26,000     26,000     

North Coast Regional District  
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Elections
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 2,120       2,250       2,250       2,250       2,250       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 230          150          150          150          150          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 120          

Total Revenue 2,470       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 2,470       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 2,470       2,400       2,400       2,400       2,400       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Grants in Aid - All
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 640          640          640          640          640          
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 20            20            20            20            20            
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 40            

Total Revenue 700          660          660          660          660          

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 700          660          660          660          660          
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 700          660          660          660          660          

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Grants in Aid Area A
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 1,400       1,400       1,400       1,400       1,400       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant 5,095       
Unconditional Grant 30            30            30            30            30            
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 1,345       

Total Revenue 7,870       1,430       1,430       1,430       1,430       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 7,870       1,430       1,430       1,430       1,430       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 7,870       1,430       1,430       1,430       1,430       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Grants in Aid Area C
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 1,500       2,000       2,000       2,000       2,000       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 20            20            20            20            20            
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 1,970       

Total Revenue 3,490       2,020       2,020       2,020       2,020       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 3,490       2,020       2,020       2,020       2,020       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 3,490       2,020       2,020       2,020       2,020       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Grants in Aid Area D
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 3,900       3,900       3,900       3,900       3,900       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 100          100          100          100          100          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus

Total Revenue 4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       4,000       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Grants in Aid Area E
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 27,500     27,500     27,500     27,500     27,500     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 1,100       1,100       1,100       1,100       1,100       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 155          

Total Revenue 28,755     28,600     28,600     28,600     28,600     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 28,755     28,600     28,600     28,600     28,600     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 28,755     28,600     28,600     28,600     28,600     

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Sandspit Fire Department
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 120          240          240          240          240          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 25,250     

Total Revenue 30,370     5,240       5,240       5,240       5,240       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 30,370     5,240       5,240       5,240       5,240       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 30,370     5,240       5,240       5,240       5,240       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018- 2022

Emergency Planning Area A & C
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 100          100          100          100          100          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 34,100     

Total Revenue 39,200     5,100       5,100       5,100       5,100       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 39,200     5,100       5,100       5,100       5,100       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 39,200     5,100       5,100       5,100       5,100       

North Coast Regional District 
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022
Emergency Planning Area D
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 10,000     10,000     10,000     10,000     10,000     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 250          250          250          250          250          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 23,820     

Total Revenue 34,070     10,250     10,250     10,250     10,250     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 34,070     10,250     10,250     10,250     10,250     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 34,070     10,250     10,250     10,250     10,250     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022
Emergency Planning Area E
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 61,850     69,855     71,599     75,179     75,179     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 1,900       1,900       1,900       1,900       1,900       
Sales of Services 3,500       7,000       7,000       7,000       7,000       
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 56,090     

Total Revenue 123,340   78,755     80,499     84,079     84,079     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 86,450     78,755     80,499     84,079     84,079     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves 36,890     

Total Operating Expenditures 123,340   78,755     80,499     84,079     84,079     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Rural Land Use Planning
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 27,330     27,100     28,000     28,000     28,000     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant 50,000     50,000     50,000     50,000     50,000     
Unconditional Grant 40            90            90            90            90            
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 6,200       

Total Revenue 83,570     77,190     78,090     78,090     78,090     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 83,570     77,190     78,090     78,090     78,090     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves -           

Total Operating Expenditures 83,570     77,190     78,090     78,090     78,090     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Economic Development
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 81,780     80,180     80,180     80,180     80,180     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 6,000       4,200       4,200       4,200       4,200       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 4,660       

Total Revenue 92,440     84,380     84,380     84,380     84,380     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 92,440     84,380     84,380     84,380     84,380     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 92,440     84,380     84,380     84,380     84,380     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Archives
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 90,720     97,582     97,590     97,590     97,590     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 5,500       4,900       4,900       4,900       4,900       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 9,360       

Total Revenue 105,580   102,482   102,490   102,490   102,490   

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 102,100   102,482   102,490   102,490   102,490   
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves 3,480       

Total Operating Expenditures 105,580   102,482   102,490   102,490   102,490   

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

North Pacific Cannery
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 73,880     69,559     69,560     69,560     69,560     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 2,100       2,100       2,100       2,100       2,100       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 2,620       

Total Revenue 78,600     71,659     71,660     71,660     71,660     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 78,600     71,659     71,660     71,660     71,660     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 78,600     71,659     71,660     71,660     71,660     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Haida Gwaii Museum
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 28,000     43,400     43,500     43,500     43,500     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       1,000       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 488          

Total Revenue 29,488     44,400     44,500     44,500     44,500     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 29,488     44,400     44,500     44,500     44,500     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 29,488     44,400     44,500     44,500     44,500     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Vancouver Island Regional Library
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 126,110   138,247   138,260   138,260   138,260   
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 6,500       3,700       3,700       3,700       3,700       
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 7,527       

Total Revenue 140,137   141,947   141,960   141,960   141,960   

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 140,137   141,947   141,960   141,960   141,960   
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 140,137   141,947   141,960   141,960   141,960   

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Haida Gwaii Recreation
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 15,000     17,500     17,510     17,510     17,510     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 100          100          100          100          100          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income 2,500       3,000       3,000       3,000       3,000       
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 6,080       

Total Revenue 23,680     20,600     20,610     20,610     20,610     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 23,680     20,600     20,610     20,610     20,610     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves -           

Total Operating Expenditures 23,680     20,600     20,610     20,610     20,610     

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Sandspit Community Hall
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 5,210       5,325       5,340       5,340       5,340       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 170          170          170          170          170          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 220          

Total Revenue 5,600       5,495       5,510       5,510       5,510       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 5,600       5,495       5,510       5,510       5,510       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves -           

Total Operating Expenditures 5,600       5,495       5,510       5,510       5,510       

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022
Mainland Recreation Area A
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 6,100       6,165       6,170       6,170       6,170       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 140          140          140          140          140          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 90            

Total Revenue 6,330       6,305       6,310       6,310       6,310       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 6,330       6,305       6,310       6,310       6,310       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 6,330       6,305       6,310       6,310       6,310       

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022
Mainland Recreation Area C
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes
Parcel Tax 50,000     50,000     50,020     50,020     50,020     
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 10,000     
Sales of Services 45,000     45,000     45,000     45,000     45,000     
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves 11,200     
Use of Prior Year Surplus 21,330     

Total Revenue 137,530   95,000     95,020     95,020     95,020     

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 119,330   95,000     95,020     95,020     95,020     
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital 11,200     
Transfer to Reserves 7,000       

Total Operating Expenditures 137,530   95,000     95,020     95,020     95,020     

Captial

Sources of Funding
Operations 11,200     -           -           -           .
Transfer from Reserves

Total Capital Funding 11,200     -           -           -           -           

Captial Purchases 11,200     -           -           -           -           

Unused Capital Funding -           -           -           -           -           

Unused Capital Funding -           -           -           -           -           

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Sandspit Water

26127127127



2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue

Property Taxes 4,830       4,860       4,860       4,860       4,860       
Provincial Basic Grant
Conditional Grant
Unconditional Grant 140          140          140          140          140          
Sales of Services
Sales of Materials
Investments
Rental Income
Other
Transfer from Other Services
Transfer from Reserves
Use of Prior Year Surplus 10,000     

Total Revenue 14,970     5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       

Expenditures

Program Expenditures 14,970     5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       
Debt Interest
Debt Principle
Transfer to Capital
Transfer to Reserves

Total Operating Expenditures 14,970     5,000       5,000       5,000       5,000       

North Coast Regional District
Financial Plan for 2018 - 2022

Feasibility Study Reserve

27128128128



Referral Memo 
 
Date: 23 March 2018 
To: Doug Chapman, CAO 
From: Morganne Williams, Planning Consultant 
 
Regarding: Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
 
Location: Peel Inlet, Moresby Island 
 
Summary of the Referral: 
 

Proponent:  Haida Tourism Limited Partnership 
 
Tenure Type: Commercial General 
 
Area:  18.9 ha 

 
Term:  Expires November 22, 2018 

 
Comments from Moresby Island APC: 
 

Based on the limited information provided and outstanding questions to be answered by 
the proponent and Province of BC, APC is recommending that the NCRD Board request 
an extension to provide comment. 
 
MI APC is planning to hold a meeting prior to the Board Meeting scheduled for 23 March 
2018. Staff will provide verbal update of information received prior to the meeting. 

 
Background Information: 
 

Haida Tourism Limited Partnership by its General Partner Haida Enterprise Corporation 
has applied for an amendment to their licence of occupation. The applicant has 
previously been granted the authority to place a floating eco-lodge within the existing 
tenure boundary during the term of their licence of occupation for investigative 
purposes. The applicant has now applied to amend the management plan governing their 
licence of application to install a barge ramp, and remove garbage, equipment, and 
untenured cabins from the tenure area. 

 
Zoning Designation: Not within zoning boundary 
 
OCP:   Forestry 

 
  
Attachments:  

1. Management Plan and Mapping  21 pages 
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ITEM 10.1
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Haida Tourism Limited Partnership 
DBA Ocean House at Stads K’uns Gawga 

Crown Land Tenure Management Plan 
(Commercial Recreation) 

 

Haida Tourism Limited Partnership (HTLP) is owned by the Haida Nation and is a subsidiary of the Haida 

Enterprise Corporation (HaiCo).  The Ocean House at Stads K’uns Gawga is the newest business 

operating under HTLP.  Through Ocean House, HTLP plans to provide unique opportunities for eco-

adventure and cultural tourism seekers on Haida Gwaii’s beautiful and rugged West Coast.  

Background 
Project Overview  

In November 2016, a License of Occupation was issued to HTLP (V925687) for conducting 

reconnaissance and survey work to plan improvements for an eco-tourism/ cultural lodge and temporary 

location for a floating eco-tourism lodge. 

HTLP is seeking an amended License of Occupation crown land tenure to cover the following commercial 

recreation activities, under non-exclusive use and specified intensive use sites: 

1. Installation of the floating lodge (barge) and all related infrastructure required to secure the barge 

(i.e., anchors, stiff-legs) (approved under V925687). 

2. Installation of a barge ramp (including lock blocks) to allow for movement of persons between the 

floating lodge (approved under V925687) and the shore, including clearing of a small area of 

alder saplings to facilitate the infrastructure installation. 

3. Clearing of a small are of crown land to facilitate a helicopter pad, of a sufficient size to 

accommodate the larger helicopters for both emergency evacuations and potential guest 

transport. 

4. Removal of garbage and equipment from the old dry-land sort as well as existing derelict cabins. 

5. Continued reconnaissance and survey work, as needed to facilitate planning of any potential 

additional improvements. 
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Authorizations, Permits or Approvals 

It is anticipated that a license to cut (Forest Act) may be required for removal of the alder associated with 

the clearing for the heli-pad. 

Notice will also be required to Transport Canada under the Navigable Waters Program related to the 

floating lodge (barge) and infrastructure. 

Park permits may also be required for the eco-cultural tours at locations outside of the license area (either 

by HTLP or through third party service providers and their permits). 

Additional permits include:  drinking water system operating permit, food services establishment permit, 

and liquor license. 

Haida Nation 

HTLP is a company owned by the Haida Nation. 

Location 
General Description 

The location of the floating lodge is Peel Inlet, West Coast of Moresby Island, Haida Gwaii (see attached 

map).  Eco/ Cultural tours will not be conducted within the License of Occupation Area at this time. 

Reasons/Justification for Location 

Peel Inlet provides a sheltered area for the floating lodge (somewhat protected from the rugged west 

coast weather and ocean waves). 

Seasonal Expectations of Use 

The Lodge will operate on a seasonal basis, with daily activity from May 1st to October 1st..   
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Infrastructure 
New Facilities or Infrastructure 

Floating Lodge - Floating lodge will be 50.29 meters by 13.44 meters, requiring two dead man anchors 

to be dug in on the shoreline (approximate size 4ft x 12ft, weighing 5 tonnes).  

Barge Ramp - A ramp (approximate size 8ft wide x 70 ft length) will be required for access to the lodge 

from shore, it will be attached to shore via 3 small lock blocks which will be dug into the ground on a ramp 

area from the old log sort (see pictures at end of this MP). The ramp will float the rest of the way from 

shore, to the lodge facility and will not require any additional anchor points beyond the lock blocks on 

shore (estimated 20ft x 20ft). 

Heli-Pad Clearing- Some clearing of immature alder (approximate area 908 m2 ) will be required in order 

for safe landing of helicopters both for guest travel and for emergency response and evacuation (see map 

and pictures). 

Site Clean Up - Removal of garbage and equipment from the old dry-land sort as well as derelict cabins 

will also be required (see pictures) for the general health and safety of the guests and crews as well as 

improving the aesthetics of the area.  

HTLP is also committed to ensuring that a CHN site monitor in place to oversee the infrastructure 

installation works. 

Access 

The Lodge and license area is access by water (via boat), or by air.  Guest transport will be via Helicopter 

through Heli-jet (S76 Helicopters). 

Overlapping Tenures 

As identified within the original License of Occupation (V925687), there are other tenures that overlap 

with the license of occupation area (one Guide Outfitter, one Mineral Tenure and one Trapline license 

holder).  The proposed tenure is for non-exclusive use, thereby there are no planned impacts to the other 

tenure holders. 

Public Access 

The proposed infrastructure is not anticipated to interfere with any persons riparian right of access over 

the land.  Public access to the beach and adjacent land on the license site will not be impacted by the 

proposed activity.  
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Utilities Requirements and Sources 

The floating lodge has its own power generation infrastructure on board (including diesel generator) and 

electrical infrastructure.  The lodge is equipped with satellite communication as well. 

Water Supply 

The floating lodge is equipped with a state of the art desalination system to generate fresh water on board 

(holding tanks are on board as well).  The system utilizes salt water from the ocean and generates fresh 

water.  The salt that is generated is deposited back into the ocean.   

Waste Collection, Treatment and Disposal 

The barge is equipped with an on-board sewage treatment plant.  The black water will be contained within 

the storage tanks on board and will be pumped out and transported by ship/ barge to be properly 

disposed of at an approved location (i.e. sewage treatment plant or approved landfill).  Grey water will be 

discharged to the ocean. 

Paper waste will be burned within an incinerator on board. 

All metal, plastic etc. (non-burnable) will be collected, stored on board, and transported to be disposed of 

at an approved facility (i.e., recycle depot or landfill) in the off-season. 

Organic kitchen waste will be disposed of in deep waters, away from the shore and lodge location. 

Eco-Tourism/ Culture Trip Proposals 

The eco/ cultural trips are not planned for within the License of Occupation tenure area.  Guests will be 

transported from the lodge to the recreation/ cultural destinations (authorized under various other tenures/ 

permits). 

The lodge will operate seasonally, May 1 to September 1.   

- Two trips/week - 3 & 4 Day trips the first and last day of each trip overlap with each other 

- Maximum capacity of the lodge is 24 guests  

- Client to guide ratio = 2:1.  

The above numbers reflect 100% occupancy (600-700) of the Lodge Facility. In the first year, we are 

planning for 50% occupancy, or a total number of 300-350 guests for the season. 

There are no planned trail building activities within the License of Occupation area. 
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Additional Information 
Risk Management Plan 

HTLP has an established Corporate Management System (CMS) in place that addresses environmental, 

quality and health and safety components that address legal requirements as well as corporate 

commitments.  The CMS includes aspects such as standard operating procedures, forms and checklists 

training, inspections and audits.  The CMS is being amended to include eco/ cultural tourism activities 

and will be completed prior to season start (and will include training of workers). 

Environmental 
Land Impacts 

Minimal land impacts are anticipated as a result of the proposed activity, as they are limited to 

infrastructure to secure the barge and ramp, removal of derelict cabins, clean up of wastes on site, and a 

small clearing of alder (on the old dryland sort site; previously cleared and used for industrial use for 

many years). 

Vegetation Removal 

Vegetation will be removed with the use of an excavator machine and/ or chainsaw. 

Soil Disturbance 

Soil disturbance is anticipated to be minimal.  The heli-pad area is located on the old dryland sort 

(compacted soils), and minimal disturbance is needed for the barge and ramp infrastructure. 

Riparian Encroachment 

The proposed activity is not located near the known stream locations (refer to the permit area map). 

Pesticides and Herbicides 

There are no planned pesticide or herbicide use at this time.  Should rats become a problem on board, 

pesticides may be used, but will be limited to use on the lodge structure. 

Visual Impacts 

There are no negative visual impacts anticipated from the proposed works.  Clean up of some of the 

garbage and old buildings on site will improve the visual quality. 
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Archaeological sites 

Baseline Archaeological Services Ltd. was engaged to conduct a Preliminary Field Reconnaissance 

(PFR), the PFR report can be provided upon request.  

Archaeological site FfUa-5 (shell midden) is located outside of the proposed development area.  The PFR 

did not identify any additional archaeological remains within the proposed development area.  The report 

also identified that no further archaeological studies are recommended. 

The site is located on an old dryland sort area used for logging operations. 

Construction Methods/ Materials 

Infrastructure to secure the barge and ramp includes steel stifflegs, concrete anchor blocks, steel chain 

and rope. 

Atmospheric Impacts 

Minimal impacts to the atmosphere are expected. There are no nearby residents.  There will be some 

emissions and sound disruption from the helicopters (intermittent) and the barge power generator.  Minor 

smoke emissions also from the incinerator (paper products). 

Restrictions on Tenuring of Aquatic Lands 

Not applicable. 

Drainage effect 

There are no anticipated impacts to the drainage of the area as a result of the proposed use. 

Public Access 

There are no changes to public access anticipated from the proposed use. 

Flood Potential 

There are no anticipated increases to the potential for flooding in the area as a result of the proposed use. 
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Site Photographs:  

Derelict Cabins to be removed 
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Cabins and associated waste 

to be removed. 

Location of 

Proposed Heli-pad 
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Metal Boat to be removed 
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Old ramp area from Dry-land Sort 

– proposed area for placement of 

lock blocks for ramp access to 

lodge 
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View from shore/start of ramp to 

proposed Floating Lodge location 

(approximately at black buoy) 
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Alternate view of proposed Heli-Pad Location 
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View of Alder to be 

Cleared for safe landing 

of S76 Helicopters 
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View of Alder to be Cleared for 

safe landing of S76 Helicopters 

144144144



 

 
 

Ocean House – Peel Inlet Crown Land Tenure MP (Feb 2018)  P a g e  | 16 

W W W . H A I C O . C A  |  P O  B O X  1 3 8 4 ,  U N I T  1 ,  C O M M E R C I A L  C E N T R E ,  S K I D E G A T E ,  B C  V 0 T  1 S 1  |  I N F O @ H A I C O . C A   

Close-up view of derelict cabins to 

be removed 
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View of 3rd cabin and 

associated waste to be 

removed 
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Example of types of waste 

to be removed – extensive 

in area 
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South-East corner of land under application(591357E, 904239N) is
 approx 5345m north and 2203m east of  North-West corner of

DISTRICT LOT 3052, QUEEN CHARLOTTE DISTRICT
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Polygon 1: OH Licence Area

Commercial Recreation 
Crown Land Tenure 

(License of Occupation)
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##

##

South-East corner of land under application(591357E, 904239N) is
 approx 5345m north and 2203m east of  North-West corner of

DISTRICT LOT 3052, QUEEN CHARLOTTE DISTRICT

All streams and stream classifications are based on 
TRM data and considerated inaccurate

Area to Clear 908m2

Approx Dimensions: 37m x25m

Lodge Area 676m2

Dimensions: 50.29m x 13.44m

Barge Ramp: 7ft x 80ft

Moresby R
oad

0 50 10025 Meters

1:2,500³ BCAlbers, Nad83

Legend
Polygon 1: OH Licence Area

Lodge

Potential Heli Pad Location

Current Cleared Area

Alder to be Cleared

## Anchor Points

Streams
Type 1

Type 2

Upland

Road

Commercial Recreation 
Crown Land Tenure 

(License of Occupation)

Water Source:  De-salinization system on board the
Floating Lodge

Sewage Treatment:  Sewage treatment onboard the
Floating Lodge.  Black water contained on board, and
disposed of in the off-season at an approved location.
Grey water discharged to the ocean.

Proposed Access:  Helicopter (see proposed heli-pad
location) and via boat.  No parking proposed.
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Lands File Tenure Map
1414358 Licence, Industrial

Date: July 11, 2016     Prepared By: BKiss, HGRD
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Document Number: 925687
Lands File: 1414358

Legal Description Schedule 

Unsurveyed Crown Land and Land covered by water being the Bed of Peel Inlet within 
Queen Charlotte District, shown outlined below, containing 18.9 hectares, more or less.

q

1414358
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Referral Memo 
 
Date: 23 March 2018 
To: Doug Chapman, CAO 
From: Morganne Williams, Planning Consultant 
 
Regarding: Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations 
 
Location: Graham Island 
 
Summary of the Referral: 
 

Proponent:  Old Massett Village Council 
 

Tenure Type: Licence 
 
Area:  19.3 ha 

 
Term:  5 years 

 
Comments from Moresby Island APC: 
 

No official comment was received. One member indicated that they were generally in 
favour of the request; however, it was difficult to understand it fully with the limited 
mapping provided. Any further comment received will be provided at the meeting. 

 
Background Information: 
 

This application is for a licence of occupation to provide for a community/institutional 
facility. This licence is being pursued interim to an Addition to Reserve application being 
submitted for (Masset I.R. #1) to use 19.318 hectares of District Lot 7 for various 
administrative, small business, tourism and cultural purposes. Under this current licence 
application to meet immediate demands Old Massett Village Council is applying for the 
parcel to construct administrative buildings for both the Council of the Haida Nation and 
the Old Massett Village Council. In addition, a biomass boiler would be installed to 
provide clean heat to the buildings. 

 
Zoning Designation: N/A 
OCP:   N/A 

  
 
Attachments:  

1. Application and Mapping 
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Crown Land Tenure Application
Tracking Number: 100232211

Applicant Information
If approved, will the authorization be issued to
 an Individual or Company/Organization?

Company/Organization

What is your relationship to the
company/organization?

Employee

REFERRAL / PUBLIC COMMENT CONTACT INFORMATION
Company / Organization: Old Massett Village Council
Contact Name: John Anthony Disney
Contact Address: 348 Eagle Avenue

P O Box 175
Masset BC  V0T 1M0

Contact Phone: 250-626-3337
Contact Email: ecdev@mhtv.ca

APPLICANT COMPANY / ORGANIZATION CONTACT INFORMATION
Please enter the contact information of the Individual/Organization who is acting on behalf of the applicant.

Name: Old Massett Village Council
Doing Business As:
Phone: 250-626-3337 ext. 28
Fax: 250-626-5440
Email: ecdev@mhtv.ca
BC Incorporation Number:
Extra Provincial Inc. No:
Society Number:
GST Registration Number: 890714637 RT001
Contact Name: John Anthony Disney
Mailing Address: 348 Eagle Avenue

P O Box 175
Masset BC  V0T 1M0

CORRESPONDENCE E-MAIL ADDRESS
If you would like to receive correspondence at a different email address than shown above, please provide the correspondence email
address here.  If left blank, all correspondence will be sent to the above given email address.

Email:
Contact Name: John Disney

ELIGIBILITY

Question Answer Warning
Do all applicants and co-applicants meet the eligibility criteria

for the appropriate category as listed below?

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Individuals must:
1. be 19 years of age or older and
2. must be Canadian citizens or permanent residents of

Canada. (Except if you are applying for a Private Moorage)

Applicants and/or co-applicants who are Organizations must
either:

1. be incorporated or registered in British Columbia
(Corporations also include registered partnerships,

Yes
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cooperatives, and non-profit societies which are formed
under the relevant Provincial statutes) or

2. First Nations who can apply through Band corporations or
Indian Band and Tribal Councils (Band or Tribal Councils
require a Band Council Resolution).

TECHNICAL INFORMATION
Please provide us with the following general information about you and your application:

EXISTING TENURE DETAILS

Do you hold another Crown Land Tenure? No

ALL SEASONS RESORTS
The All Seasons Resorts Program serves to support the development of Alpine Ski and non-ski resorts on Crown land. For more detailed
information on this program please see the operational policy and if you have further questions please contact FrontCounter BC.

Are you applying within an alpine ski resort? No

WHAT IS YOUR INTENDED USE OF CROWN LAND?
Use the "Add Purpose" button to select a proposed land use from the drop down menu.
If you wish to use Crown land for a short term, low impact activity you may not need to apply for tenure, you may be authorized under
the Permissions policy or Private Moorage policy.
To determine if your use is permissible under the Land Act please refer to either the Land Use Policy - Permissions or Land Use Policy -
Private Moorage located here.

Purpose Tenure Period
Community Institutional
Community Facility

Licence of Occupation Two to five years

What are you applying for? Nominal Rent Tenure (Licence / Lease)

ACCESS TO CROWN LAND

Please describe how you plan to access your
proposed crown land from the closest public
road:

The proposed parcel of land has a highway on one side and the North Haida
Gwaii Hospital public road running from the highway along the end of this
parcel of land.

COMMUNITY INSTITUTIONAL
Crown land dispositions for less than fair market value are offered on a limited basis to community or institutional groups. Please visit
the Community and Institutional webpage  for more information.

Specific Purpose: Community Facility
Period: Two to five years
Tenure: Licence of Occupation

ELIGIBILITY
Sponsored Crown Grants and Nominal Rent Tenures are limited to specific organizations. Please refer to the Community and
Institutional Program Area for verification of  eligibility.

Are you eligible? Yes

TOTAL APPLICATION AREA
Please give us some information on the size of the area you are applying for.

Please specify the area: 19 hectares

PROJECT DETAIL
A Community Organization is open to the entire community, or provides benefit to the entire community. Examples: historical, museum
and arts societies, recreation organizations, community organizations, volunteer societies, youth and senior service organizations.

Are you a community organization? Yes

Please upload the Constitution and Bylaws
document.

fin bylaw april 28 2006.pdf  Old Massett Village Council Financial
Bylaw
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Please upload the Annual Report / Financial
Statement document.

Consolidated FS Mar 2017 -
563837.pdf

 Old Massett Village Council 2016/17
Audit

IMPORTANT CONSIDERATIONS

Are you intending to use the land as a shooting range or shooting
club for discharge of firearms?

No

ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS
In many cases you might require other authorizations or permits in order to complete your project. In order to make that determination
and point you in the right direction please answer the questions below. In addition, your application may be referred to other agencies
for comments.

Is the Applicant or any Co-Applicant or their Spouse(s) an employee
of the Provincial Government of British Columbia?

No

Are you planning to cut timber on the Crown Land you are applying
for?

Yes

To cut timber on the Crown Land once your tenure has been issued you may require an Occupant Licence to Cut.
Check out the website of the forest district responsible for more information or contact them if you have any
questions.

Are you planning to use an open fire to burn timber or other
materials?

No

Do you want to transport heavy equipment or materials on an
existing forest road?

No

Are you planning to work in or around water? No

Does your operation fall within a park area? No

LOCATION INFORMATION

LAND DETAILS

Please provide information on the location and shape of your Crown land application area. You can use one or more of the tools
provided.

 I will upload a PDF, JPG or other digital file(s)
MAP FILES

Your PDF, JPG or other digital file must show your application area in relation to nearby communities, highways, railways or other land
marks.

Description Filename Purpose
 Description of parcel of land Info package.pdf Community Institutional

 This PDF file was supplied to Old Massett Village
Council by the surveyor that surveyed this parcel
of land known as Parcel 'C'

Parcel C.pdf Community Institutional

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

Document Type Description Filename
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Development Plan  A brief outlining the plans of the Old Massett Village
Council for Parcel 'C'.
The immediate use of this parcel is for governance
buildings.

Proposal brief Feb 2012.doc

Development Plan  management plan, Provincial form management_plan.pdf

General Location Map  Parcel 'C' sketch map with lot info 6407537_Parcel C.pdf

Ministry Sponsorship  Ministry accepts application from Kluu Laanas Corp,
which is the corporate entity formed to handle the
Parcel 'C' file.

6407537 Ack Letter May 2  2...

Other  1 of 4 Resolutions from OMVC BCR 2001.pdf

Other  2 of 4 resolutions showing OMVC support BCR 2014 2017.pdf

Other  Cultural survey Vanderhoop_CHN Parcel C CFI...

Other  FS appendices Parcel C FS appendices.pdf

Other  FS appendices Parcel C FS appendices.pdf

Other  Letters of support Including DFO clearance LOS.pdf

Other  Solutions table approval for development on Parcel
'C'

Solutions Table.pdf

Other  feasibility study Parcel C FS.pdf

Other  timber cruise of Parcel 'C' timber cruise KRV-2014-01-o...

Other Band Council Resolution showing support of council
and thus the community of Old Massett

BCR dec 2011.pdf

Site Photographs Sat. photo of Parcel 'C' Parcel 'C' schematic.jpg

Site Plan  site picture to clarify location and surrounding land 19 Ha parcel w out back por...

PRIVACY DECLARATION

 Check here to indicate that you have read and agree to the privacy declaration stated above.
IMPORTANT NOTICES
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 Once you click 'Next' the application will be locked down and you will NOT be able to edit it any more.
DECLARATION
 By submitting this application form, I, declare that the information contained on this  form is complete and accurate.

OTHER INFORMATION

Is there any other information you
would like us to know?

The Old Massett Village Council has put the access to Parcel 'C' as their top priority.
They are in the process of implementing an Addition to Reserve for this parcel to add
it to Old Massett Reserve IR #1. However, they have 2 immediate needs for using this
land; first an administration building for the Council of the Haida Nation and secondly
an administration building for their own village council. Both of these are ready to go
to construction phase immediately and so this application for a license to occupy.

APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED FEES

Item Amount Taxes Total Outstanding Balance
Crown Land Tenure Application Fee $250.00 GST @ 5%: $12.50 $262.50 $0.00
OFFICE

Office to submit application to: Haida Gwaii

PROJECT INFORMATION

Is this application for an activity or project which
requires more than one natural resource
authorization from the Province of BC?

No

OFFICE USE ONLY
Office

Haida Gwaii
File Number Project Number

Disposition ID Client Number
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